
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82815747439?pwd=STQ0MldBR1lTcm5CRUFlazMzZEZUdz09 
 
Meeting ID: 828 1574 7439 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in: 
        +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 828 1574 7439 
Passcode: 893952 

 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call 

 
_______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  _______Rod Boone, Clerk   _______Gabriel Leal 
_______Genaro Reyes    _______Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   

 

Page 1 of 247

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82815747439?pwd%3DSTQ0MldBR1lTcm5CRUFlazMzZEZUdz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1616605114726000&usg=AOvVaw0cSU_GIewwt76eO0Vno_xM


6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
 

7.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 
a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 4) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 5) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.6) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 7) 
ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 8) 

iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 9) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 10) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (written) (p. 11) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (written) (p. 12) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 13) 
b. Bond Status (Fund 21) Update (p. 15)  
c. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 18) 
d. Hamilton High School Class of 2021 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma recipients (handout) 
e. Hamilton High School Class of 2021 Seal of Biliteracy recipients 
f. Hamilton High School Class of 2021 Valedictorians & Salutatorian: 

i. Valedictorians: Elizabeth Anne Matthews; Lisette Anais Haro-Mendoza; Alejandro Gonzales-Ortiz 
ii. Salutatorian: Xitlaly Medina-Cruz 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. 2021-2024 COVID Funding Expenditures (p. 20) 
 

12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Approve Fall 2021-22 Return to school schedule (p. 22) 
b. Approve Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan (p. 23) 
c. Authorize Superintendent to Execute DWK HUSD Agreement for Professional Services 2021-22 School Year (p. 

33) 
d. Approved proposed District Projects and Funding Sources Update (p. 37) 
e. Approve Request for Proposal (RFP) NO 2021-01: Infrastructure, Modernization & Utility Savings Program (p. 

39) 
f. Approve quote from Ginno Construction for painting exterior of HHS Gym to be completed summer of 2021. (p. 

48) 
g. Approve quote from Tree Worx for tree removal and trimming at Hamilton Elementary on Hwy 45 during 

summer 2021 (p. 55) 
h. Approve quote from Steel-Crete Inc. for HES fencing (p. 67) 
i. Approve agreement between HUSD and Gaynor to install and maintain network intercom server pending CDE 

approval ESSER Expenditure (p. 71) 
j. Approve proposal from CSEA to HUSD 2019-20 Sunshine Reopener (p. 78) 
k. Adopt Resolution Number 20-21-107 A Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of Fund 08 – Student Activity 

Special Revenue Fund (p. 80) 

Page 2 of 247



l. Approve Perkins: Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act – Amount $7,155 (p.
87)

m. Approve Agriculture Incentive Grant (p. 143)
n. Approve Career Technical Education Incentive Grant (p. 156)
o. Authorize Four 10-hour day work weeks for Admin Assistants June through August 2021 (p. 202)
p. Approve GCOE MOU Agreement for Technology Support Services July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 (p. 204)
q. Approval for Superintendent to notify GSRMA Board of HUSD intent to possibly exit agreement at end of 2021-

22 fiscal year (p. 207)
r. Approve Certificated 2020-21 Salary Schedule containing 1% retro (1% retro approved at 4/28/2021 board

meeting) (p. 209)
s. Approve a 1% salary schedule increase for 2020-21 uniform with Certificated Teachers/Counselors for

Classified/Confidential, Certificated Management, Chief Business Official, Superintendent and Other Duty
(Adult Ed Teacher I position only) consistent with past practice and employment agreement (p. 211)

t. Approve fund transfer from General Fund to Bond Fund to cover annual repayment of $50,000 (p. 212)
u. Resolution 20-21-108: ASB Funds Transfer (p. 213)
v. Resolution 20-21-109: 2021 Senior Class ASB Funds Transfer (p. 215)
w. Appoint Vicky Casillas to serve on Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee (p. 218)

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on April 28, 2021 (p. 219)
b. Hamilton Elementary SSC Agenda on May 11, 2021 (p. 225)
c. Hamilton Elementary SSC Minutes for March 23, 2021 (p. 235)
d. 2021-2022 Designation of CIF Reprensentatives to League (p. 236)
e. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 237)
f. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).

i. Out
1. Hamilton Elementary School

a. None
2. Hamilton High School

a. None
ii. In

1. Hamilton Elementary School
a. None

2. Hamilton High School
a. 9th x 1 (2021-22)

g. Personnel Actions as Presented:
i. New hires:

Taren Allen Art Teacher (starting 2021-22) HHS 

ii. Resignations/Retirement:
Sophie Montgomery Short-Term District Custodian, Effective 6/30/21 HUSD 
Tim DeVries Short-Term District Custodian, Effective 6/30/21 HUSD 
Derek Ahlswede JV Baseball Coach HHS 
Andrea Jones Varsity Volleyball Coach HHS 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 

Page 3 of 247



Technology Report 

Board Meeting on May 19, 2021 

Frank James, Director of Technology 

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician 

 
 
Completed and in Progress Tasks – May 2021 

• Chromebook Repair: Continued repairing Chromebook stock. I am almost completed 

with the HHS Chromebook repairs and I hope to start on HES repairs this week. 

• APC Project: APC has been installed in the HHS Server Room. The rest will follow once 

programing and plan are established. The HHS Server Room was needed as the old one 

no longer works properly. 

• Chromebook Agreement: Draft has been completed for a Chromebook use agreement 

between the District and Students/Parents. 

• Cachebox: Netflix issues have been resolved utilizing a bypass rule.  

Page 4 of 247



HUSD Food Service Report  

Board Meeting on May 19, 2021 

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare 

 

We are nearing the end of the school year! 

• We can see the light at the end of the tunnel.  People are getting vaccinated and this 

extraordinary school year is coming to an end. 

• Spring break fell at the beginning of the month so we lost six days of production 

reflected in our numbers below.   

Claim numbers for April: 

• We served 2900 breakfasts between the preschool, the elementary and the high school.   

• We also served 4,525 lunches in this period. 

• Our after-school program, (B&G Club) operated 13 days in April and served 1,226 

suppers and 1,226 snacks. 

Service Adjustments: 

• We had three complaints come through on the Tip Line from our website about menu 

items.   

• Due to the pandemic we are providing meals to students in plastic bags 

• Because of this, menu items need to be individually wrapped and be able to take some 

rough handling.   

• In response to the three complaints, we have adjusted the menu. 

• We do take these suggestions seriously and we are trying to satisfy our student body. 

 

Page 5 of 247



HUSD Maintenance Report 

Board Meeting on May 19, 2021 

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation 

 
Bussing: 

• We have wrapped up the basketball season with transporting the girls to Biggs 

• We will transport Softball to 3 games this month. 

• We will transport Baseball to 5 games this month.  

• Bus #1 had new rear tires installed and Van #6 also received new tires.  

Custodial: 

• We continue to work alongside Wizard cleaning as they cover for custodians who are out.  

o Custodians can be out due to days off or transportation to sporting events. 

o Wizard is flexible to our needs and is doing a great job. 

Maintenance: 

• The baseball fields are keeping us busy.  

o They required substantial prep after a year of non-use 

o They cleaned up nicely.  

• The necessary grounds work and irrigation maintenance consume a good portion of our week 

these days.  

• We are getting ready for the busy last few weeks of the school year and making plans for the 

summer and the upcoming year.  

Page 6 of 247



HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Board Meeting on May 19, 2021 

Submitted by  

Kathryn Thomas, Principal 

 

Enrollment: 420                  

Attendance: April 

Grade Mode Percentage 

TK Synchronous/Asynchronous 93.37% 

K Synchronous/Asynchronous 97.11% 

1 Synchronous/Asynchronous 93.88% 

2 Synchronous/Asynchronous 94.70% 

3 Synchronous/Asynchronous 93.21% 

4 Synchronous/Asynchronous 97.11% 

5 Synchronous/Asynchronous 96.81% 

6 Synchronous/Asynchronous 95.58% 

7 Synchronous/Asynchronous 97.14% 

8 Synchronous/Asynchronous 94.32% 

Campus News:  

• Students were celebrated on Día Del Nino with a popsicle from PTO and dancing with our school mascot, 
Lobo. It was a festive day for all.  

• Testing is drawing to a close with just a few students to finish.  

• Master Scheduling is now being finalized, and staff/room assignments will be provided to teachers by May 
21st. 

• We are continuing to address students with chronic absenteeism, meeting with parents and providing 
support/resources. 

• We were able to provide Spring pictures to all students and staff this month. In addition, 8th graders and 
Kindergarten students will have their promotion photos on May 18th. 

Instructional News: 

• We are working together with our Glenn County Leads with tentative plans for professional 
development/training in Universal Design for Learning (UDL) for instructional access for all.  

• New for next year will be a position at the Middle School level to support students’ academic and socio-
emotional needs with an AVID elective--our teacher will be receiving a three-day training in order to 
prepare for the Fall. 

• Our Dual Immersion program is holding steady with student numbers. We now have a total of 124 DI 
students enrolled in grades K-4.  

• Teachers are finalizing their benchmark assessments to be created using our Illuminate/DNA platform to 
improve our academic progress monitoring.  

Coming Up: 

• 8th grade promotion is planned for Thursday, June 3rd at the high school to be followed by an outside 8th 
grade dance “Under the Stars.”  

• Kinder “promotion” will be on Friday, June 4th from 8-10 (drive by with photo op--complimentary 5x7s to 
parents). 
 
 

Page 7 of 247



Alternative Education Report 

Board Meeting on Wednesday May 19, 2021 

Maria Reyes, Dean of Students 

 
 
 

Seniors are finalizing credit completion and looking forward to graduation Friday June 4th.  We 

have seven seniors graduating and one student returning as a fifth year senior.   

Summer school will be offered this summer, and students will have the opportunity attend and 

earn up to five credits.   

We look forward to a regular school next August.  

 

Enrollment: 

12th grade = 8 (two of the eight are in Independent Study) 
 
11th grade = 3    
__________ 

 11 

Page 8 of 247



Page 9 of 247



Hamilton Adult Education 

Board Meeting Report-May 19, 2021 

Silvia Robles/Director 

 

Completed and in Progress Tasks – April, 2021 

1. Enrollment and students served to date for all 2020-2021 programs:  

• Citizenship ..................................................................15  

• Computer Basics ........................................................17 

• CPR/First Aid scheduled for March  ...........................14 

• ESL ..............................................................................33  

• Floral Design ...............................................................23 

• Forklift Training ..........................................................32 

• High School Diploma ..................................................31  

• Job Readiness scheduled for February and March ....11 

TOTAL:  ...................................................... 176 

 

2. Assist participants with the barriers and challenges of distance learning  

3. Connecting with adult students who chose to continue with distance learning via Zoom or phone.  

4. Meeting with HSD students to assist in the completion of credits and communicating with parents. 

5. Enrollment-ongoing 

6. Forklift Training for May is full, and June will fill up quickly. 

7. Annual Agency Citizenship Recertification completed and submitted 

8. WIOA Agency Continuous Improvement Plan completed and submitted 

9. California WIOA AEFLA Program Implementation Survey completed and submitted 

10. Third Quarter Data Integrity Report submitted 

 

Page 10 of 247



Hamilton Unified School District

General Fund - Unrestricted and Restricted

May 19, 2021 Board Report

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Revised Budget Year To Date Revised Budget Year To Date

Second Interim As of 5/12/21 Second Interim As of 5/12/20

Revenues

LCFF Sources 7,714,760$    5,798,662$     7,833,272$    6,559,793$    

All Other Federal Revenue 1,162,188$    958,558$        332,568$        309,064$       

Other State Revenue 561,743$        554,358$        454,493$        238,062$       

Other Local Revenue 150,442$        171,945$        109,577$        79,079$         

Other Financing Sources -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                

Total Revenues 9,589,133$    7,483,523$     8,729,910$    7,185,998$    

Expenditures

Certificated Personnel Salaries 3,115,770$    2,654,836$     3,475,572$    2,863,704$    

Classified Personnel Salaries 1,046,639$    908,785$        1,268,602$    986,239$       

Employee Benefits 1,748,336$    1,508,909$     1,986,270$    1,626,939$    

Books and Supplies 745,160$        598,708$        475,163$        265,397$       

Travel and Conferences 79,145$          10,963$          132,133$        53,335$         

Dues and Memberships 15,920$          10,334$          12,000$          14,843$         

Other Insurance 93,766$          93,766$          100,695$        100,695$       

All Other Utilities 275,450$        218,573$        275,450$        230,887$       

Rents/Leases/Repairs 64,745$          44,627$          77,099$          50,088$         

Other Operating Expenditures 615,921$        459,089$        285,627$        266,080$       

Capital Outlay 410,340$        461,608$        420,978$        242,032$       

Other Outgo 998,074$        34,028$          861,565$        392,678$       

Total Expenditures 9,209,266$    7,004,226$     9,371,154$    7,092,917$    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund 379,867$        479,297$        (641,244)$      93,081$         

Beg. Fund Bal. (2019-20 Unaudited Actuals) 887,322$        

Projected End. Fund Bal. 1,267,189$    

Page 11 of 247



HUSD Superintendent Report  

Board Meeting on May 19, 2021 

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D. 

 

Target Goals created by District Cabinet: 

• Focus on Dual Immersion-Bilingual/Biliterate/Bicultural 

• All students at Standard and Achievement Gap Closed 

• Graduates who are College and Career Ready 
 

We are in the homestretch to the 2020-2021 school year and, as a District, are busy with multiple events.  
Athletics, State Assessments, and 2021-2022 Planning are wrapping up and now is the time to celebrate the 
hard work of our students, staff, and parents.  

District Updates: 

● COVID-19: 

○ Glenn County is now in the Orange Tier and, if the current trends continue, we may be able 

to move into the Yellow Tier in the next two weeks! 

○ With the announcement of changes in mask wearing byt the CDC last week, the District is 

reviewing the guidance we must follow as CDPH has authority over our schools.  Until then, 

we are continuing with our mandated mask wearing.   

○ Hamilton Unified is actively involved in the Glenn County Athletic COVID Committee which is 

meeting regularly to discuss COVID positive cases of athletes and how we can best move 

forward.  HUSD has advocated for contact tracing and this is the direction the committee has 

also decided to follow. 

2021-2022 Budget Update: 

● The Governor still has not released his 2021-2022 Budget.  Once this is released, Kristen and I will 
review and update the Board on the implications for the District.   

Strategic Planning/LCAP: 

● The District is continuing to develop both our Strategic Plan and LCAP simultaneously.  The goal is to 
provide a roadmap for the District to follow in the coming years.  This has been accomplished 
through a collaborative process and focused on allowing all voices to be heard.   

● On Friday, May 14, we had a Quarterly Cabinet Meeting in which we reviewed our Strategic 
Planning Needs, Project Updates, and COVID Funding allocations.  These items are included in this 
board packet for the board to review also.   

● I am in the process of completing the 2021-2022 LCAP and will present this to you on June 9 for a 
first review. 

Upcoming District Events: 

• 5/19-20: Glenn County Fair Minimum Days at HHS 

• 5/19: HULC @ 3:30 via Zoom 

• 5/19: Regular School Board Meeting @ 5:30 

• 6/3: Jr. High Graduation  

• 6/4: High School Graduation 

Page 12 of 247



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2015-2021

304 HHS 264 HHS 269 HHS 286 HHS 265 HHS 296 HHS

9 EBHS 14 EBHS 12 EBHS 9 EBHS 13 EBHS 11 EBHS

K-5 K-5 279 K-5 292 K-5 272 K-5 274 K-5

6-8 6-8 133 6-8 125 6-8 153 6-8 146 6-8

728 ENROLLMENT 692 ENROLLMENT 693 ENROLLMENT 712 ENROLLMENT 703 ENROLLMENT 727 ENROLLMENT

712.26 ADA 669.29 ADA 672.21 ADA 687.87 ADA 668.36 ADA 687.23 ADA

Enrollment and ADA totals above are based on P2 Data Reporting except current year based on current reporting

6

2020-21

5

2020-21 ADA based on Month 9 report (3/22/2021-4/16/2021)

2019-202018-192017-182016-172015-16

1 2 3 4

414415

728

692 693

712

703

727

712.26

669.29
672.21

687.87

668.36

687.23

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

D
is

tr
ic

t 
En

ro
llm

e
n

t 
&

 A
D

A

Enrollment  ADA

Enrollment & ADA by School Year

Page 13 of 247



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2015-2021

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

13 TK 13 TK 12.11 13 TK 12.08 13 TK 11.93 13 TK 11.91

42 K 42 K 41.11 43 K 41.30 41 K 35.59 41 K 39.40

41 1 40 1 40.53 40 1 40.16 40 1 38.14 40 1 38.05

47 2 45 2 43.11 43 2 42.95 43 2 41.11 44 2 41.08

40 3 40 3 37.84 40 3 38.14 40 3 37.34 40 3 37.44

42 4 42 4 40.11 42 4 40.51 42 4 39.70 42 4 39.79

50 5 49 5 48.05 48 5 47.81 48 5 46.21 49 5 46.21

41 6 41 6 39.21 41 6 39.78 39 6 39.21 40 6 38.95

60 7 59 7 59.68 60 7 59.54 60 7 59.61 61 7 59.59

44 8 44 8 43.05 44 8 43.32 43 8 42.23 43 8 42.91

74 9 76 9 73.68 77 9 74.35 78 9 75.15 78 9 75.56

65 10 66 10 62.63 67 10 63.62 68 10 64.46 68 10 64.97

80 11 79 11 76.85 77 11 77.41 77 11 75.94 77 11 76.04

74 12 74 12 70.57 74 12 72.13 73 12 70.94 73 12 70.51

713 TOTAL 710 TOTAL 688.53 709 TOTAL 693.1 705 TOTAL 677.56 709 TOTAL 682.41

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

13 TK 11.96 14 TK 11.79 14 TK 12.14 TK TK

40 K 39.29 42 K 39.13 42 K 39.39 K K

41 1 37.97 41 1 38.18 42 1 38.48 1 1

42 2 41.13 45 2 41.26 46 2 41.74 2 2

39 3 37.38 41 3 37.50 41 3 37.87 3 3

41 4 39.68 43 4 39.84 42 4 40.10 4 4

48 5 46.2 47 5 46.12 47 5 46.03 5 5

41 6 38.87 41 6 38.87 42 6 39.16 6 6

61 7 59.43 60 7 59.36 60 7 59.14 7 7

44 8 42.74 44 8 42.75 44 8 42.51 8 8

80 9 75.69 81 9 76.02 84 9 76.52 9 9

70 10 65.17 71 10 65.22 71 10 65.35 10 10

73 11 73.67 76 11 75.00 78 11 75.57 11 11

74 12 72.92 74 12 70.73 74 12 73.23 12 12

707 TOTAL 682.1 720 TOTAL 681.77 727 TOTAL 687.23 0 TOTAL 0 0 TOTAL 0

2020-21

ADA5/17-6/11/2021

2020-21 2020-21

12/28-1/22/2021 01/25-2/19/2021

2020-21

8/11-8/17/20

2020-21

8/05-8/30/20

ADA ADA

2020-21

ADA

2020-21

11/2-11/27ADA ADA

2020-21

ADA4/19-5/14/2021

2020-21

09/07-10/02
ADA

3/22-4/16/2021

2020-21

11/2-12/25ADA

Page 14 of 247



 Building Fund 21 (Bond) Expenditures for 2020-21

For May 19, 2021 HUSD Board Meeting

Total Expenditures through May 10, 2021

PO # Date Vendor Description Amount

PV 1 7/22/2020 Bank of New York Mellon Paying Agent Fee; RE: Election of 2018, GO Bonds, Series A 750.00$                 

423 9/23/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 490.50$                 

423 10/21/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 2,256.00$             

423 12/2/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 90.00$                   

423 12/9/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 12,913.50$           

423 2/3/2021 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 3,598.50$             

423 2/24/2021 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 10,069.50$           

423 3/24/2021 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 14,973.00$           

423 4/28/2021 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 8,113.50$             

PV 12 10/7/2020 Department of Toxic Substances Control - DTSC Property purchase testing 577.58$                 

21-150 8/19/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 3,360.00$             

21-150 9/16/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 4,480.00$             

21-150 10/14/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 3,920.00$             

21-150 11/10/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 4,200.00$             

21-150 12/9/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 2,520.00$             

21-150 1/13/2021 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 1,120.00$             

21-150 2/10/2021 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 1,120.00$             

PV 32 11/10/2020 Hamilton Unified Revolving Fund for Glenn County File a parcel map in Glenn County 1,136.00$             

19-515 11/10/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Study/Expansion 2,097.38$             

19-515 11/10/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Study/Expansion 2,186.63$             

21-152 8/19/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 1,650.00$             

21-152 10/21/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 740.00$                 

21-152 12/16/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 540.00$                 

21-152 12/16/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 1,105.00$             

21-152 2/3/2021 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 180.00$                 

21-152 2/24/2021 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 740.00$                 

448 9/2/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal ad for public hearing related to high school expansion 82.00$                   

TV 301 3/19/2021 Timios Escrow Deposit into escrow for acquisition of property 50,000.00$           
Total expenditures through 5/10/2021 135,009.09$         

Page 15 of 247



 Building Fund 21 (Bond) Expenditures for 2019-20

For HUSD Board Meeting August 26, 2020

PO # Date Vendor Description Amount

423 9/27/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 802.00$                

423 10/30/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,126.00$             

423 11/13/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 165.00$                

423 12/11/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 2,969.00$             

423 1/8/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518/1103 807.00$                

423 5/6/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 754.50$                

423 5/20/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,833.50$             

423 6/24/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,194.50$             

423 6/30/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 2,179.50$             

423 6/30/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 9,317.00$             

19397 9/27/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,057.63$             

19397 9/27/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,445.00$             

19397 10/16/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 2,960.00$             

19397 10/23/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 171.62$                

19397 12/11/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 12,940.58$           

19397 2/5/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 12,895.93$           

19397 2/5/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 560.00$                

19397 3/18/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,475.12$             

19397 3/18/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,252.38$             

19397 6/17/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,366.98$             

19515 9/27/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 4,692.02$             

19515 10/2/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 5,009.48$             

19515 11/20/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 9,667.98$             

19515 11/20/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 14,715.59$           

19515 6/17/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 15,933.69$           

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 430.49$                

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 9,341.19$             

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 2,588.26$             

20202 9/27/2019 Department of Toxic Substances Control - DTSC Property Purchase Testing 14,480.00$           

20219 9/27/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,040.00$             

20219 9/27/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,200.00$             

20219 11/13/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,480.00$             

20219 12/11/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 3,080.00$             

20219 1/15/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 2,520.00$             

20219 2/12/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 2,380.00$             

20219 3/11/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,480.00$             

20219 4/15/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,320.00$             

20219 5/20/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 3,920.00$             

20219 6/17/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,200.00$             

20219 6/30/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,180.00$             

20247 11/20/2019 Timios Title Title Report for new property 400.00$                

20287 10/9/2019 Robertson Erickson Inc. Survey for land 3,250.00$             

20287 6/30/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc. Survey for land 3,250.00$             

20495 6/30/2020 Integrated Educational Planning & Programming Building/Expansion Project 4,800.00$             

PV 98 3/11/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal Ad - Notice of Prep. of a Prelim. Environmental Assess. 90.20$                  

PV 119 6/17/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal Ad - Expansion Project 139.40$                
Total expenditures through 6/30/2020 193,861.54$        

Page 16 of 247



2018-19 Bond and Property Expenses

PO # Vendor Description Amount Reimbursable

19-567 California Appraisals Appraisal for future site 4,000.00$   Yes

19-134 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Bond Development & Election 34,440.00$ Yes

PV#69 Glenn County Elections Bond Election Fees 3,466.00$   No

19-309 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Environmental Site Assessment 4,600.00$   Yes

19-397 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,060.62$   Yes

19-524 HUSD Revolving Fund New property project 1,500.00$   Yes

19-514 Placeworks Inc. Title 5 Risk Assessment 15,210.00$ Yes

19-515 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; Expansion Project 5,877.75$   Yes

18-639 School Works Inc. Development Fee Study 6,000.00$   No

19-596 Western Valuation Professional Appraisal - new property 3,500.00$ Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10518 Property Purchase Negotiation 6,470$         Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discussions 1,017$         No

Total Amount Expended 90,140.87$ 

Reimbursable Total 79,657.87$ 

2018-2019 Bond and Property Related Expenses

Page 17 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

May 19, 2021 

 
CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE- (Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel) 

CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NV5) 

• Final PEA completed; submitted to DTSC 2/11/2020.  Required 30-day Public Comment Period 

opened 2/17/2020; closed 3/20/2020.  Public Comment Hearing completed at Board Meeting 

2/26/2020.  No adverse comments from DTSC received; No Further Action (Final Approval 

Letter) from DTSC (see attached) received 4/29/2020.  No further action required by the District; 

requirements completed. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PLACEWORKS) 

• CEQA Final Report now completed; Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration on District 

Agenda for review 4/22/2020 (see separate Agenda item). Notice of Intent to Adopt and 30 

Public Comment period from 4/20/2020 through 5/20/2020; no public comments received to 

date. Board adoption and final Notice of Determination on August 26, 2020 Board Agenda for 

approval.  Final Notices of Determination filed with Glenn County Planning Commission ant 

California Office of Planning and Research.  CEQA requirements completed. 

TITLE 5 REPORTS (PLACEWORKS) 

• Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY-No mitigation measures 
required. 

• Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY:  No special risks or mitigation 
required.  

• Dam Inundation Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY: Dam Inundation: No special 

risks or mitigation required. 

EDUCATIONAL SPECIFICATIONS (iep2) 

• Initial Steering Committee Meeting held 2/11/2020; focus group meetings now completed for 

functional interest groups, parents, students and community members.  Board to be briefed at 

June meeting; final report at July 2021 Board Meeting. 

GEOLOGICAL HAZARDS STUDIES (EFPM/LLC) 

• Geological Hazards Study completed by EFPM/LLC after consultation with Department of 

Education/Facilities Division. 

  

Page 18 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

May 19, 2021 

 
FINAL SITE SURVEY 

• Fieldwork for final site survey for escrow closure and recording completed by Robertson 

Erickson Surveying & Engineering in August 2020; final report now being held pending final 

resolution of specified metes & bounds.  

PLANNING COMMISSION SUBMITTAL (EFPM/LLC) 

• Request for Glenn County Planning Commission review (per Section 21151.2. Public Resources 

Code) submitted on 6/10/2020, with a requested return within 45 days. Public hearing and 

comments by Planning Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see attached 

Glenn County Planning Commission Staff Report). Planning Commission submission requirement 

completed. 

WILLIAMSON ACT FILINGS (EFPM/LLC) 

• Initial Williamson Act abatement filings to County Planning Office and State Department of 

Conservation reviewed by District Legal Counsel and submitted to the State Department of 

Conservation and the Glenn County Planning Commission on 6/15/2020. Approval by 

Department of Conservation on 7/23/2020; review and comment by Glenn County Planning 

Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see above).  Department must file 

copy of final executed purchase agreement with Department of Conservation. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FILINGS 

• CDE Initial Filings & SFPD 4.03 submitted, including all completed studies/documents noted 

above. Now pending submission of executed purchase agreement to begin final CDE review. 

 

Page 19 of 247



Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act, 2021 (CRRSA)

Funding: Allocation Based on:
Deadline to 

Spend:
Amount to 

District:
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund II 
(ESSER II)*

Allocation based on the proportion of our 2020-21 share of 
Title I, Part A funds 9/30/2023 $543,114.00

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/learningloss.asp

AB 86 Reopening Grants

Funding: Allocation Based on:
Deadline to 

Spend:
Amount to 

District:
In-Person Instruction Grants Allocation based on the proportion of our LCFF entitlement 8/31/2022 $250,780.00

*Expanded Learning Opportunity Grants
Allocation based on # of Homeless Youth and the proportion 
of our LCFF entitlement 8/31/2022 $555,222.00

*10% ELO Grant MUST be used for Paraprofessionals TOTAL $806,002.00

American Rescue Plan

Funding: Allocation Based on:
Deadline to 

Spend:
Amount to 

District:
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund III 
(ESSER III)

Allocation based on the proportion of our share of Title I, Part 
A funds 9/30/2024 $1,208,620.00

Total Funding Allocation: $2,557,736.00
ESSER II Funds Spent during 2020-2021 school year: $200,000.00

Total from Worksheet: $2,355,000.00
Remaining Funding Available for 2021-2024: $2,736.00

Page 20 of 247

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/learningloss.asp


2021-2022 COVID-19 Expenditure Recommendations                                                                                
Presented to Board: 4.28.21, 5.19.21

2022-2023 COVID-19 Expenditure Recommendations                                                                               
Presented to Board: 

2023-2024 COVID-19 Expenditure Recommendations                                                                           
Presented to Board: 

Personnel
4.28.21 Proposed 5.19.21 Update to 

be approved 
before 6.1.21 Personnel

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21 Personnel

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21

HHS Math (1) $85,000.00 $85,000.00 HHS Math (1) $85,000.00 HHS Math (1) $85,000.00
HHS Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00 $85,000.00 HHS Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00 HHS Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00
HES Science (1) $85,000.00 $85,000.00 HES Science (1) $85,000.00 HES Science (1) $85,000.00
HES PE (1) $85,000.00 $85,000.00 HES PE (1) $85,000.00 HES PE (1) $85,000.00
HES Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00 HES Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00 HES Intervention Specialist (1) $85,000.00
Independent Study (1) $85,000.00 Independent Study (1) Independent Study (1)
Social/Emotional & Career Elective (6-8) $85,000.00 Social/Emotional & Career Elective (6-8) $85,000.00 Social/Emotional & Career Elective (6-8) $85,000.00
HES Para  (1) $25,000.00 $25,000.00 HES Para  (1) $25,000.00 HES Para  (1) $25,000.00
COVID Coordinator (.5) $45,000.00 $45,000.00 COVID Coordinator (.5) $45,000.00 COVID Coordinator (.5) $45,000.00
Sped Para (2) $50,000.00 $50,000.00 Sped Para (2) $50,000.00 Sped Para (2) $50,000.00
Custodial (2) $50,000.00 $50,000.00 Custodial (2) $50,000.00 Custodial (2) $50,000.00

Total $680,000.00 $595,000.00 Total $0.00 $680,000.00 Total $0.00 $680,000.00

Books and Supplies
4.28.21 Proposed 5.19.21 Update to 

be approved 
before 6.1.21 Books and Supplies

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21 Books and Supplies

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21

Updated Classroom Technology/Flexible Seating $100,000.00 $100,000.00
Updated Classroom Technology/Flexible 
Seating $50,000.00 $50,000.00

Updated Classroom Technology/Flexible 
Seating $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Total: $100,000.00 $100,000.00 Total: $50,000.00 $50,000.00 Total: $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Services and Other Expenses
4.28.21 Proposed 5.19.21 Update to 

be approved 
before 6.1.21 Services and Other Expenses

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21 Services and Other Expenses

4.28.21 
Proposed

5.19.21 Update 
to be approved 
before 6.1.21

Personal Protective Equipment $15,000.00 Personal Protective Equipment $5,000.00 Personal Protective Equipment $5,000.00
Intercom System (Health and Safety) $120,000.00 Elementary Restroom Renovation $150,000.00
Drinking Stations $15,000.00
Air Scrubbers/Filtration System Upgrade $25,000.00
Air Conditioning system in Ag (Health and Safety) $50,000.00

Total: $0.00 $225,000.00 Total: $0.00 $0.00 Total: $0.00 $0.00
Total Proposed: $780,000.00 $920,000.00 Total Proposed: $50,000.00 $730,000.00 Total Proposed: $25,000.00 $705,000.00

Total COVID Fund Proposed Expenditures 5.19.21 Update:$2,355,000.00

Page 21 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13a Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve Fall 2021-22 Return to school schedule 

Background: 
The HUSD School District has experienced an unprecedented school year.  With this School Board’s 
Approval, HUSD schools will begin the planning of a full 5-day student attendance the same as pre-
COVID.  HUSD will continue to follow all CDC, CDPH, and Glenn County Public Health recommendations. 
 

Hamilton Elementary School 

• Monday-Thursday: 
o 8:10-2:30 

• Friday: 
o 8:10-12:30 

Hamilton Middle School 

• Monday-Thursday: 
o 8:10-2:30 

• Friday:  
o 8:10-12:30 

 
 
 

Hamilton High School 

• Monday-Thursday: 
o 8:15-3:15 

• Friday:  
o 8:15-12:30 

 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
n/a 

Educational Impact:  
All students would return to a full day, 5 day a week schedule similar to pre-COVID. 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve Fall 2021-22 return to school schedule 

 

Page 22 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13b Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan 

Background: 
To be eligible for the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant funding, HUSD must implement a learning 
recovery program, that at a minimum, provides supplemental instruction, support for social and 
emotional wellbeing for those students who have faced adverse learning and social-emotional 
circumstances.  
 
ELO Grants shall be expended only for any of the following purposes: extending instructional learning 
time, accelerating progress to close learning gaps, integrated pupil supports, community learning hubs, 
supports for credit deficient pupils, additional academic services, and training for school staff. LEAs are 
encouraged to engage, plan, and collaborate on program operation with community partners and 
expanded learning programs, and leverage existing behavioral health partnerships in the design and 
implementation of services.  

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: HUSD is expected to receive $555,222 from this grant. 

Educational Impact:  
See Extended Learning Opportunities Grant Plan (attached) 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan 

 

Page 23 of 247



Page 1 of 2 
 

California Department of Education 
March 2021 

 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Hamilton Unified School District 
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

jpowell@husdschools.org 
530-826-3261 

The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) plan for providing supplemental instruction and support to students, including 
those identified as needing academic, social-emotional, and other supports, including the provision of meals and snacks. The plan will 
explain how the LEA will use the funds it receives through the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant to implement a learning 
recovery program for at least the students included in one or more of the following groups: low-income students, English learners, foster 
youth, homeless students, students with disabilities, students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, disengaged students, and 
students who are below grade level, including, but not limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020–21 school year, 
credit-deficient students, high school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. 

For specific requirements please refer to the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan Instructions. 

Plan Descriptions 

A description of how parents, teachers, and school staff were involved in the development of the plan. 

Through a series of meetings and discussions with District administrative staff, Hamilton Unified Leadership Committee (comprised of 
District Administration, Certificated, and Classified staff), discussion focused on plans to best meet the needs of students over the next 
three years. Discussions and updates were presented to the Hamilton Unified School Board members throughout the months of 
February, March, April, and May. Also parents were consulted during our DELAC committee, Site Council meetings. Discussions also 

Page 24 of 247

mailto:jpowell@husdschools.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

took place with the Boys and Girls club which supports our students after school and during breaks on how we can partner together to 
meet the needs of the students we both serve. 

A description of how students will be identified and the needs of students will be assessed.   

Students in need of additional services were identified through multiple assessment measures. SBAC data, STAR Reading and Math 
data, as well as, staff recommendation and parental consultation. End of the year grades and report cards will also be evaluated to 
determine needs. Social Emotional Surveys will be given and used as well.  Hamilton Unified School District will provide ongoing 
assessment throughout the school year utilizing classroom formative assessments, STAR Reading and Math Assessments as well as 
teacher created District Benchmark Exams.  It became very clear that all students need support as we transition from a year of distance 
learning and pandemic environment to in-person instruction in a recovering pandemic environment. In addition to the assessments, 
students were also identified based on attendance, engagement, and social-emotional needs. The usage of our multi-tier of student 
support also helped to identify the students and grade levels in greatest need of support and intervention as well as in some cases 
acceleration.  Ongoing Social/Emotional Surveys will also be utilized to be able to adjust services in meeting the needs of the students.  
As a community with diverse needs the need for support in academics, nutrition, social-emotional care, and mental health supports. 
survey results from parents, students, and staff also played a large role in the identification of students and the needs specific to 
Hamilton Unified and our students. 

A description of how parents and guardians of students will be informed of the opportunities for supplemental instruction and support. 

Opportunities for students will be shared with parents in a number of ways. Regular ongoing communication will take place utilizing our 
weekly newsletters, emails and phone calls. During Back to School night in August supports for students will be highlighted for all 
parents. Each school will also use the Student Study Team format to bring in parents as partners to discuss how to best meet the 
needs of students. All communication will be available in the parents preferred language. Documents will be translated and interpreters 
will be provided.  Continued communication is the key to the success of this plan. It is honest, and authentic communication that will 
ensure we meet the needs of all our students. Our focus is on students and on making up for the loss of learning and disconnect 
associated with the closure and virtual distance learning implemented as a result of the covid-19 pandemic. 

A description of the LEA’s plan to provide supplemental instruction and support.  

This plan will allow the District to use funds received through the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant to implement a learning 
recovery program to meet the needs of students following the 2020-21 school year in which students were in taught in either a Hybrid, 
reduced day Am/PM schedule, or Distance Learning format for the majority of the school year. With the intervention teachers and the 
para support we will be able to provide a tiered level of support. Giving students the intervention when they need it and focusing on the 
skills that they need so that they can accelerate their learning. For students to be successful there is a strong need for parent support 
as well and we will be providing help in that area. Counselors and other support staff at all school sites will be focusing on the social-
emotional needs of students over the next few years. The following areas will be how we plan to enhance the supplemental instruction 

Page 25 of 247



Page 3 of 2 
 

and support for these students. By adding additional instructional staff, the District will reduce class sizes and, thus, individual students 
will be better served by their classroom teacher.  We will also be utilizing ESSER Funds to expand these supports past the 21-22 
school year: 

 

-The purchase of materials for English Learners to support the English Language acquisition; 

-The increase of support days as contracted with GCOE for a mental health clinician to support students' social-emotional behavioral   
health; 

-Extend Learning opportunities throughout the summer with support from Boys and Girls Club; 

-Extend Learning opportunities by providing an after-hours computer lab/community resource center at HHS; 

-Hire two temporary Certificated Intervention Teachers at full time; 

-Hire three temporary additional Certificated Teachers at full-time to engage in social/emotional support and smaller class sizes.  

-Hire three temporary additional part-time (5.75 hours) paraprofessionals and or temporarily extend the current paraprofessional daily 
work hours to full-time equivalent (5.75 hours) to engage in small group instruction and support; 

-Hire one temporary COVID Recovery Coordinator at .5 time; 

-Update/Upgrade Adult School capacity to act as learning hub for community; 

-Provide and fund staff development on emotional supports for students; 

*The plan is based on our ability to fully staff positions. Should we not be able to fully staff the plan will be updated to indicate 
alternative expenditures based on student needs. 

 

Expenditure Plan 
The following table provides the LEA’s expenditure plan for how it will use ELO Grant funds to support the supplemental instruction and 
support strategies being implemented by the LEA. 

Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies Planned Expenditures Actual Expenditures 

Extending instructional learning time $25,000 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Accelerating progress to close learning gaps through the implementation, 
expansion, or enhancement of learning supports 

$460,000 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Page 26 of 247



Page 4 of 2 
 

Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies Planned Expenditures Actual Expenditures 

Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning $60,000 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, 
high-speed internet, and other academic supports 

$5,000 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade 
promotion requirements and to increase or improve students’ college 
eligibility 

$0 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Additional academic services for students $0 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Training for school staff on strategies to engage students and families in 
addressing students’ social-emotional health and academic needs 

$5,222 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available]   

Total Funds to implement the Strategies $555,222 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

A description of how ELO Grant funds are being coordinated with other federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 
Funds received by the LEA. 

A multi-year plan has been developed to incorporate ELO funds along with Federal ESSER funds and our LCAP funds through a 
Strategic Planning Process so that programs that are being implemented in the 2021-22 school year will be able to be maintained for 
the 22-23 and 23-24 school years as well. Through the budgeting process over the next three years we will be evaluating the programs 
developed and determining which of these programs we will be continuing past the 23-24 school year. These determinations will be 
done utilizing data provided through academic testing and surveying parents and students. All stakeholders will be involved in this 
process. 

 

Page 27 of 247



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan Instructions: Introduction 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan must be completed by school districts, county offices of education, or charter 
schools, collectively referred to as Local Educational Agencies (LEAs), that receive Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 
funds under California Education Code (EC) Section 43521(b). The plan must be adopted by the local governing board or body of the 
LEA at a public meeting on or before June 1, 2021, and must be submitted to the county office of education, the California Department 
of Education, or the chartering authority within five days of adoption, as applicable. The plan must be updated to include the actual 
expenditures by December 1, 2022. 

For technical assistance related to the completion of the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan, please contact 
ELOGrants@cde.ca.gov. 

Instructions: Plan Requirements 

An LEA receiving ELO Grant funds under EC Section 43521(b) is required to implement a learning recovery program that, at a 
minimum, provides supplemental instruction, support for social and emotional well-being, and, to the maximum extent permissible 
under the guidelines of the United States Department of Agriculture, meals and snacks to, at a minimum, students who are included in 
one or more of the following groups: 

• low-income,  

• English learners,  

• foster youth,  

• homeless students,  

• students with disabilities,  

• students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation,  

• disengaged students, and  

• students who are below grade level, including, but not limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020–21 school 
year, credit-deficient students, high school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. 

For purposes of this requirement  

• “Supplemental instruction” means the instructional programs provided in addition to and complementary to the LEAs regular 
instructional programs, including services provided in accordance with an individualized education program (IEP). 

• “Support” means interventions provided as a supplement to those regularly provided by the LEA, including services provided in 
accordance with an IEP, that are designed to meet students’ needs for behavioral, social, emotional, and other integrated 
student supports, in order to enable students to engage in, and benefit from, the supplemental instruction being provided. 

Page 28 of 247

mailto:ELOGrants@cde.ca.gov


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

• “Students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation” means students who are identified as being at risk of abuse, neglect, or 
exploitation in a written referral from a legal, medical, or social service agency, or emergency shelter. 

EC Section 43522(b) identifies the seven supplemental instruction and support strategies listed below as the strategies that may be 
supported with ELO Grant funds and requires the LEA to use the funding only for any of these purposes. LEAs are not required to 
implement each supplemental instruction and support strategy; rather LEAs are to work collaboratively with their community partners to 
identify the supplemental instruction and support strategies that will be implemented. LEAs are encouraged to engage, plan, and 
collaborate on program operation with community partners and expanded learning programs, and to leverage existing behavioral health 
partnerships and Medi-Cal billing options in the design and implementation of the supplemental instruction and support strategies being 
provided (EC Section 43522[h]). 

The seven supplemental instruction and support strategies are: 

1. Extending instructional learning time in addition to what is required for the school year by increasing the number of instructional 
days or minutes provided during the school year, providing summer school or intersessional instructional programs, or taking any 
other action that increases the amount of instructional time or services provided to students based on their learning needs. 

2. Accelerating progress to close learning gaps through the implementation, expansion, or enhancement of learning supports 
including, but not limited to, any of the following: 

a. Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or classified staff. 

b. Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate student academic proficiency or English language 
proficiency, or both. 

c. Educator training, for both certificated and classified staff, in accelerated learning strategies and effectively addressing 
learning gaps, including training in facilitating quality and engaging learning opportunities for all students. 

3. Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning, such as the provision of health, counseling, or mental health 
services, access to school meal programs, before and after school programs, or programs to address student trauma and social-
emotional learning, or referrals for support for family or student needs. 

4. Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, high-speed internet, and other academic supports. 

5. Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade promotion requirements and to increase or improve 
students’ college eligibility. 

6. Additional academic services for students, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and benchmark assessments of student 
learning. 

7. Training for school staff on strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage students and families in addressing 
students’ social-emotional health needs and academic needs. 

Page 29 of 247



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

As a reminder, EC Section 43522(g) requires that all services delivered to students with disabilities be delivered in accordance with an 

applicable IEP. 

Fiscal Requirements 

The following fiscal requirements are requirements of the ELO grant, but they are not addressed in this plan. Adherence to these 
requirements will be monitored through the annual audit process. 

• The LEA must use at least 85 percent (85%) of its apportionment for expenditures related to providing in-person services in any 
of the seven purposes described above. 

• The LEA must use at least 10 percent (10%) of the funding that is received based on LCFF entitlement to hire paraprofessionals 
to provide supplemental instruction and support through the duration of this program, with a priority for full-time 
paraprofessionals. The supplemental instruction and support provided by the paraprofessionals must be prioritized for English 
learners and students with disabilities. Funds expended to hire paraprofessionals count towards the LEAs requirement to spend 
at least 85% of its apportionment to provide in-person services. 

• An LEA may use up to 15 percent (15%) of its apportionment to increase or improve services for students participating in 
distance learning or to support activities intended to prepare the LEA for in-person instruction, before in-person instructional 
services are offered. 

Instructions: Plan Descriptions 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broad understanding among the LEA’s 
local community. 

A description of how parents, teachers, and school staff were involved in the development of the plan 

Describe the process used by the LEA to involve, at a minimum, parents, teachers, and school staff in the development of the 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan, including how the LEA and its community identified the seven supplemental instruction 
and support strategies that will be implemented. LEAs are encouraged to engage with community partners, expanded learning 
programs, and existing behavioral health partnerships in the design of the plan. 

A description of how parents and guardians of students will be informed of the opportunities for supplemental instruction and 
support. 

Describe the LEA’s plan for informing the parents and guardians of students identified as needing supplemental instruction and support 
of the availability of these opportunities, including an explanation of how the LEA will provide this information in the parents’ and 
guardians’ primary languages, as applicable. 

Page 30 of 247



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

A description of how students will be identified and the needs of students will be assessed 

Describe the LEA’s plan for identifying students in need of academic, social-emotional, and other integrated student supports, including 
the LEA’s plan for assessing the needs of those students on a regular basis. The LEA’s plan for assessing the academic needs of its 
students may include the use of diagnostic and formative assessments. 

As noted above in the Plan Requirements, “other integrated student supports” are any supports intended to address barriers to 
learning, such as the provision of health, counseling, or mental health services, access to school meal programs, before and after 
school programs, or programs to address student trauma and social-emotional learning, or referrals for support for family or student 
needs. 

A description of the LEA’s plan to provide supplemental instruction and support  

Describe the LEA’s plan for how it will provide supplemental instruction and support to identified students in the seven strategy areas 
defined in the Plan Requirements section. As a reminder, the LEA is not required to implement each of the seven strategies; rather the 
LEA will to work collaboratively with its community to identify the strategies that will be implemented. The plan must include a 
description of how supplemental instruction and support will be provided in a tiered framework that bases universal, targeted, and 
intensive supports on students’ needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated student supports. The plan must also 
include a description of how the services will be provided through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school 
climate.  

As a reminder, EC Section 43522(g) requires that all services delivered to students with disabilities be delivered in accordance with an 
applicable individualized education program. Additionally, LEAs are encouraged to collaborate with community partners and expanded 
learning programs, and to leverage existing behavioral health partnerships and Medi-Cal billing options in the implementation of, this 
plan (EC Section 43522[h]). 

Instructions: Expenditure Plan 
The ‘Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies’ column of the Expenditure Plan data entry table lists the seven supplemental 
instruction and support strategies that may be supported with ELO Grant funds.  

Complete the Expenditure Plan data entry table as follows: 

In the ‘Planned Expenditures’ column of the data entry table, specify the amount of ELO Grant funds being budgeted to support each 
supplemental instruction and support strategies being implemented by the LEA and the total of all ELO Grant funds being budgeted. 

The plan must be updated to include the actual expenditures by December 1, 2022. In the ‘Actual Expenditures’ column of the data 
entry table the LEA will report the amount of ELO Grant funds that the LEA actually expended in support of the strategies that it 
implemented, as well as the total ELO Grant funds expended.  

Page 31 of 247



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

A description of how these funds are being coordinated with other federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 
Relief Funds received by the LEA 

Describe how the LEA is coordinating its ELO Grant funds with funds received from the federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund provided through the federal Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 
2021 (Public Law 116-260), also known as ESSER II, to maximize support for students and staff. 

 
California Department of Education 
March 2021 
 

Page 32 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13c Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Authorize Superintendent to Execute DWK HUSD Agreement for Professional Services 2021-22 School 
Year. 

Background: 
Hamilton Unified School District has used DWK for legal support for multiple years.  Through these years, 
there has been a trust and understanding build between the representatives of DWK and the Hamilton 
Unified School District.  This is the annual renewal of this contract. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact:  
Cost of contract varies by District need of legal support. 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board Authorize Superintendent to Execute DWK HUSD Agreement for Professional Services 
2021-22 School Year 

 

Page 33 of 247



MATTHEW P. JUHL-DARLINGTON

Attorney at Law

mdarlington@DWKesq.com

Chico

DWK SF 975600v1

April 22, 2021

VIA EMAIL

Dr. Jeremy Powell, Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 95951
Email: jpowell@husdschools.org

Re: 2021-22 Agreement for Professional Services

Dear Dr. Powell:

In the more than four decades we have been providing legal advice and counseling
services to California school and community college districts, we have never felt more
honored to be your partner over this last year in achieving your mission – in the face
of extraordinary challenges - to educate and prepare all children and young adults to
be responsible, mindful citizens in the global marketplace of ideas. We remain your
steadfast allies and will support you with our full range of expertise to adapt, pivot
and adjust to whatever the impending “new normal” may be in order to provide
quality education programs to millions of California students.

Attached is our Agreement for Professional Services for 2021-2022. In light of the
economic uncertainty confronting us all, no changes have been made to the billing
ranges. Individual attorney hourly rates, however, may be adjusted within the
existing ranges.

We will continue to offer the Hamilton Unified School District efficient and prompt
service and the highest quality legal advice and counsel you have come to expect.

We look forward to serving the District in the coming school year and continuing our
mutually rewarding partnership. Please sign the attached Agreement, insert the date
of Board approval, and return to the undersigned via email.

Best regards,

DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

Matthew P. Juhl-Darlington
MJD:nm

Page 34 of 247



Agreement for Professional Services Page 1
DWK SF 975600v1

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into on April 22, 2021, by and between the
Hamilton Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as District, and Dannis Woliver
Kelley, a professional corporation, hereinafter referred to as Attorney.

In consideration of the promises and the mutual agreements hereinafter contained,
District and Attorney agree as follows:

SCOPE OF SERVICES. District appoints Attorney to represent, advise, and counsel
it from July 1, 2021, through and including June 30, 2022, and continuing thereafter as
approved. Any services performed during the period between the above commencement
date and the date of Board action approving this Agreement are hereby ratified by said
Board approval. Attorney agrees to prepare periodic reviews of relevant court decisions,
legislation, and other legal issues. Attorney agrees to keep current and in force at all times
a policy covering incidents of legal malpractice.

CLIENT DUTIES. District shall be truthful with Attorney, cooperate with Attorney,
keep Attorney informed of developments, ensure access for Attorney to communicate with
the District’s governing board as appropriate, perform the obligations it has agreed to
perform under this Agreement and pay Attorney bills in a timely manner.

FEES AND BILLING PRACTICES. Except as hereinafter provided, District agrees to
pay Attorney two hundred sixty-five dollars ($265) to three hundred sixty dollars ($360) per
hour for Shareholders and Of Counsel; two hundred forty-five dollars ($245) to two hundred
ninety-five dollars ($295) for Special Counsel; one hundred ninety-five dollars ($195) to two
hundred sixty dollars ($260) per hour for Associates; and one hundred thirty dollars ($130)
to one hundred eighty dollars ($180) per hour for Paralegals and Law Clerks. The rate for
Gregory J. Dannis will be four hundred twenty-five dollars ($425) per hour. Rates for
individual attorneys may vary within the above ranges depending on the level of experience
and qualifications and the nature of the legal services provided. Agreements for legal fees at
other than the hourly rate set forth above may be made by mutual agreement for special
projects, particular scopes of work, or for attorneys with specialized skills. The rates
specified in this Agreement are subject to change at any time by Attorney by written notice
to Client and shall apply to all services rendered after such notice is given. Substantive
communications advice (telephone, voice-mail, e-mail) is billed in a minimum increment of
one-tenth (.1) of an hour, except for the first such advice in any business day, which is
charged in a minimum of three-tenths (.3) of an hour. Actual travel time is charged at the
rates above. In the course of travel it may be necessary for Attorney to work for and bill
other clients while in transit. If, during the course of representation of District, an insurance
or other entity assumes responsibility for payment of all or partial fees of Attorney on a
particular case or matter, District shall remain responsible for the difference between fees
paid by the other entity and Attorney's hourly rates as specified in this Agreement unless
otherwise agreed by the parties.

OTHER CHARGES. District further agrees to reimburse Attorney for actual and
necessary expenses and costs with respect to providing the above services, including
support services such as copying charges (charged at $0.10 per page), postage (only
charged if in excess of $1.00), and computerized legal research (i.e. Westlaw). Any discount
received on computerized legal research is passed along to Client by Attorney. District
agrees that such actual and necessary expenses may vary according to special
circumstances necessitated by request of District or emergency conditions which
occasionally arise. Such expenses shall be provided at cost unless otherwise specified.

District further agrees to pay third parties, directly or indirectly through Attorney, for
major costs and expenses including, but not limited to, costs of serving pleadings, filing fees
and other charges assessed by courts and other public agencies, arbitrators' fees, court
reporters' fees, jury fees, witness fees, investigation expenses, consultants' fees, and expert
witness fees. Upon mutual consent of District and Attorney, District may either advance or
reimburse Attorney for such costs and expenses.

Page 35 of 247



Agreement for Professional Services Page 2
DWK SF 975600v1

Occasionally Attorney may provide District officials and/or employees with food or
meals at Attorney-sponsored trainings or when working with District officials and/or
employees. Attorney may provide such food or meals without additional charge in exchange
for the consideration provided by the District under this Agreement.

BILLING STATEMENT. Attorney shall send District a statement for fees and costs
incurred every calendar month. Attorney's statements shall clearly state the basis thereof,
including the amount, rate and basis for calculations or other methods of determination of
Attorney's fees. Upon District office's request for additional statement information, Attorney
shall provide a bill to District no later than ten (10) days following the request. District is
entitled to make subsequent requests for bills at intervals of no less than thirty (30) days
following the initial request. District shall pay Attorney's statements within thirty (30) days
after each statement's date.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is expressly understood and agreed to by both
parties that Attorney, while carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the District.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. In some situations, where Attorney has relationships
with other entities, the Rules of Professional Conduct may require Attorney to provide
disclosure or to obtain informed written consent before it can provide legal services for a
client. Attorney represents many school and community college districts, county offices of
education, joint powers authorities, SELPAs and other entities throughout California. The
statutory and regulatory structure of the provision of education services results in many
ways in which these entities interact which could result in a conflict between the interests of
more than one of Attorney’s clients. If Attorney becomes aware of a specific conflict of
interest involving District, Attorney will comply with the legal and ethical requirements to
fulfill its duties of loyalty and confidentiality to District. If District has any question about
whether Attorney has a conflict of interest in its representation of District in any matter, it
may contact Attorney or other legal counsel for clarification.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. District or Attorney may terminate this Agreement
by giving reasonable written notice of termination to the other party.

COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate originals, including
facsimiles, each of which shall fully bind each party as if all had signed the same copy.
Electronic copies of signatures shall be treated as originals for all purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement for
Professional Services.

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Dr. Jeremy Powell Date
Superintendent

DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

Matthew P. Juhl-Darlington Date
Attorney at Law

At its public meeting of , 2021, the Board approved this Agreement and
authorized the Board President, Superintendent or Designee to execute this Agreement.

April 22, 2021

Page 36 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13d Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve proposed District Projects and Funding Sources Update 

Background: 
 
During the April 28 Regular Board Meeting, the Board asked the Superintendent to review potential 
expenditures from the Proposed Bond Funded Projects list and identify if there were opportunities to use 
other funds to complete these projects.  This list the updated Proposed Projects List with funding sources 
for the Board to review and approve.  

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact:  
Dependent upon project costs as approved.  Expenditures would be from General Fund, Bond, Funds, 
and available COVID funding sources up to potentially $429,000. 
 

Educational Impact:  
N/A 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve proposed District Projects and Funding Sources Update 

 

Page 37 of 247



Proposed Projects Update
HUSD Project Title Funding Source Cost Notes

Summer 2021 Intercom Project (Both HHS and HES) COVID 19 $120,000.00 HHS $ 70,000, Elem $ 55,000; Pending Board and CDE Approval

2021-2022 Water Bottle Drinking Fountains COVID 19 $18,000.00 We are looking at 12 throughout the District, Pending Board and CDE Approval

2021-2023 Painting of Buildings (not including Gym) Bond Fund $40,000.00 As needed

Summer 2021 HVAC Air Scrubber Systems COVID 19 $25,000.00 Pending Board and CDE Approval

HHS

2022-2023 Extend Walkway behind Stadium and Lights Bond Fund $40,000.00 For safety in evenings and when used by visitors

2022-2023 New Visitor Bleachers for Stadium General Fund $25,000.00 Old Bleachers need to be replaced

2022-2023 Re-work Fencing around Ella Restrooms for Stadium Access General Fund $10,000.00 To allow stadium access, safety concerns

2022-2023 Tennis Court Renovation General Fund $10,000.00 Renovate Tennis court to be Futsal Courts (soccer)

Summer 2021 Painting of HHS Gym Deferred Maintenance $35,000.00 Pending Board Approval

2021-2022 Air Filtration/Conditioning for Ag. classroom COVID 19 $10,000.00 Pending Board and CDE Approval
HES

2021-2022 Trashcan area renovation Bond Fund $20,000.00 Currently collecting quotes; Pending Board Approval

Summer 2021 Front Fencing General Fund $55,000.00 Currently collecting quotes; Pending Board Approval

Summer 2022 Update/Remodel Restrooms COVID 19 $120,000.00 Currently reviewing needs; Pending Board and CDE Approval

Summer 2021 Student Drop Off/Pick-Up General Fund $2,500.00 Currenlty finalizing plan with Elementary School Administration

Summer 2021 Tree Trimming/Removal General Fund $29,000.00 Currently collecting quotes

Summer 2021 Sun Shades-Clean Up General Fund $5,000.00 Finalizing plan with Maintenance Department for repair Summer of 2021

*New Projects Projects Total: $564,500.00

Bond Fund: $100,000.00
COVID 19 Funds: $293,000.00

General Fund: $136,500.00
Deferred Maintenance: $35,000.00

Page 38 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13e Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve Request for Proposal (RFP) NO 2021-01: Infrastructure, Modernization & Utility Savings Program 

 

Background: 

The District intends to select a qualified provider for the development, implementation, 

and monitoring of a comprehensive infrastructure modernization and utility savings 

program. Upon award, the District will enter into a professional services agreement for 

a districtwide site assessment. Prior to entering into a contractual agreement for 

project implementation, an agreed upon scope of work and project pricing will require 

separate board approval. 
 

The District intends to implement a design-build program consistent with the provisions 

of California Government Code sections 4217.10-4217.18 that will provide sustained 

efficiencies and energy cost savings. 
 

The District, at its sole discretion, may select the awarded respondent for subsequent 

phases of work. The District, at its sole discretion, also reserves the right to reject any 

or all bidders. 

 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve Request for Proposal (RFP) NO 2021-01: Infrastructure, Modernization & Utility 

Savings Program 

 

 

Page 39 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED 
S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  
 

    
  620 Canal Street  
 P.O. Box 488, Hamilton City, CA 95951 
 TEL 530-826-3261  FAX  530-826-0440 

 
  Jeremy Powell ,  Ed.  D.  

  Superintendent  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 2021-01 

Infrastructure Modernization & Utility Savings Program 

 

The following RFP is seeking proposals from qualified design-build firms capable of providing 

comprehensive energy, gas, & water infrastructure improvements. 

 
RESPONSE DEADLINE FOR PROPOSALS: June 3, 2021 

 
RFP Contact for Submission: 

Dr. Jeremy Powell, 

Superintendent  

(530) 826-3261 ext. 6011 

twilhelm@husdschools.org 

 PO Box 488, 620 Canal St 

Hamilton City, CA 95951 
 

I. RFP PROCESS 

The District intends to select a qualified provider for the development, implementation, 

and monitoring of a comprehensive infrastructure modernization and utility savings 

program. Upon award, the District will enter into a professional services agreement for 

a districtwide site assessment. Prior to entering into a contractual agreement for 

project implementation, an agreed upon scope of work and project pricing will require 

separate board approval. 
 

The District intends to implement a design-build program consistent with the provisions 

of California Government Code sections 4217.10-4217.18 that will provide sustained 

efficiencies and energy cost savings. 
 

The District, at its sole discretion, may select the awarded respondent for subsequent 

phases of work. The District, at its sole discretion, also reserves the right to reject any 

or all bidders. 
 

II. PROJECT GOALS 

buildings towards other upgrades and   programs   that   enhance student   learning.  an 

infrastructure modernization and utility savings program that accomplishes the 

following: 

  

Page 40 of 247

mailto:twilhelm@husdschools.org


 

• Achieves long-term cost savings through reduced energy, gas & water usage 

• Upgrades antiquated and inefficient equipment 

• Provides a comfortable and safe learning environment 

• Maintains building functionality and compatibility with existing equipment 

• Improves utilization of technology to achieve optimum performance and savings 

• Minimizes financial and technical risk to the Owner 

• Provides training to employees on maintenance and repair of equipment and controls 

• Provides comprehensive funding solutions 
 

III. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 

Respondents must meet the following minimum requirements to participate in the District's 

RFP process: 
 

• Have five (5) California K-12 customer references for which the respondent has 
provided turn-key responsibility including guaranteed energy savings in the past 
five 

(5) years. Of those five (5) references, at least two (2) need to have two (2) years of 

verified energy savings performance. 

• Current accreditation by the National Association of Energy Services Companies 
(NAESCO), and be included on the U.S. Department of Energy's (DOE) Qualified List 

of Energy Service Companies 

• Active G.C. license in California 

• Minimum of $10 Million in bonding capacity 
 

IV. SCOPE OF WORK 

Upon award, the selected respondent will be required to perform site assessments at 

each of the District's facilities to evaluate infrastructure improvements in order to 

develop a scope of work tailored for its needs. Specifically, the awarded respondent will 

evaluate and propose applicable conservation measures including but not limited to: 
 

• Heating Ventilation & Air Conditioning (HVAC) system optimization, retrofit, upgrade or 
replacement 

• Interior & exterior lighting upgrades 

• Building Automation System (BAS) installation, upgrade, or expansion 

• Solar and other renewable technology 

• Water conservation 

• Building envelope upgrades 

• Other related infrastructure improvements 

• Other training, remote monitoring services, and on-going support services that will 
ensure objectives of program are met over the term of the agreement 

 

The selected respondent will then implement an agreed upon and Board-approved scope 

Page 41 of 247



of work. All proposed infrastructure improvements must be provided on a turn-key basis 

including all necessary permits, engineering, Division of the State Architect (DSA) 

requirements, delivery, installation, commissioning, training, warranty service, and 

compliance with any applicable funding programs. After the scope of work has been fully 

implemented the selected respondent will be required to provide M&V services to monitor 

post-retrofit utility usage and track energy savings. 

 
V. PROPOSED TIMELINE 

 
May 20, 2021 RFP Released 

June 3, 2021 RFP Reponses Due 

June 10, 2021 Respondent Awarded 

 

VI. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS 

Ink or Typewritten 

All information, prices, notations, signatures, and corrections must be in ink or 

typewritten. Mistakes may be crossed out and corrections typed or printed adjacent to 

the mistake and initialed in ink by the person signing the proposal. 

 
Signature Verification 

To be considered for award, each proposal must be signed by a legally authorized 

representative of your company. 

 
Proposal Documents 

Failure to completely execute and submit the required documents before the bid 

submittal deadlines will render a proposal non-responsive. 

 
Informed Respondent 

It will be your responsibility to be fully informed as to the conditions, requirements, and 

and relief cannot be secured on the plea of error. 

VII. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

Five (5) 

shall be submitted in the format contained in the RFP. The original proposals shall be 

submitted in a three (3) ring loose-leaf binder or report cover. It is critical that all 

responses follow the same format to allow equal and fair evaluation of each response. 

Responses should be limited to thirty-five (35) pages (not including table of contents, 

cover letter, or sample contracts/agreements) and include the following: 

 
SECTION TABS 

Proposals should be divided by tab sections according to items in the index. This will assist 

the evaluating team in identifying items and information submitted with the proposal. 

Page 42 of 247



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

The table of contents of the proposal should include a clear and complete identification 

of the materials submitted by tab section and page number. 

 
COVER LETTER 

A signed letter of interest (no more than two (2) pages), stating the respondent's interest and 

qualifications in providing the services as outlined in the RFP.  Please describe how the 

respondent meets the minimum requirements as described in section III of the RFP. 

 
Tab 1: Background, Financial Capacity & Management Structure 

a) Provide general information on the respondent including: a brief history of the firm, 

key differentiating factors and areas of expertise, length of time performing 

services, and location of California offices. 

b) Provide a statement of the respondent's financial capacity and capability to perform to 

the terms of this solicitation request. 

c) Describe the management structure of the responding firm and include an 

organizational chart. Provide resumes for personnel to be used on this project and 

describe their qualifications and experience with projects of a similar size and 

scope. 

 
Tab 2: Litigation Disclosure 

Describe any involvement as a party in any formal litigation, arbitration or mediation 

associated with savings performance on an energy savings contract or specifically 

related to an Investment Grade Audit (IGA) agreement in the last five years under any 

previous or current firm names, along with a description of the nature and outcome of 

such litigation. 

 
Tab 3: References 

Provide detailed project histories for a minimum of five (5) California K-12 districts for 

which the responding firm provided turn-key responsibility for similar design-build 

guaranteed savings programs in the past three years. At least two (2) of these must have    a 

minimum of two (2) years of verified energy savings track record. Describe the scope of 

work, start/completion date, services and equipment provided, project size, total project 

savings, and funding sources. 

 
Tab 4: Project Approach 

a) Provide a description of the respondent's approach to performing site assessments and 

identifying infrastructure improvement. 

b) Provide a description of the respondent's approach to managing the project 

implementation and procedures for minimizing occupant disruptions. 

c) Describe the steps taken by the respondent during and after the turnover process 

to ensure successful project implementation. 

d) Describe training programs available for district employees. 

 Page 43 of 247



Tab 5: Funding Sources 

-1 

infrastructure needs and sustainability programs. Please describe specific funding 

sources that the respondent has facilitated and successfully obtained including any 

funding solutions or approaches which may be unique or exclusive to the respondent. 

 
Tab 6: Savings 

a)  

b) Describe the methodology and formulas utilized for reporting of the savings. 

c) Provide a description of monitoring services after implementation. 

d) List any projects/customers in which the guaranteed savings was not met and how 

each was resolved. 

 
Tab 7: Additional Benefits and Value Added Elements 

Please describe any additional benefits that may result from program implementation 

and s added value elements in delivering infrastructure modernizations 

and/or sustainability programs. 

 
Tab 8: Contracts, Pricing and Forms 

Provide sample contracts for an investment grade audit, project installation, Measurement 

& Verification (M&V) including terms and conditions. Complete and include enclosed 

pricing proposal and acknowledgement form. 

 
VIII. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The District will evaluate qualifications based on the scoring criteria outlined in this section. 

Respondents who are not actively engaged in providing services of the nature proposed       

in this RFP and/or who cannot clearly demonstrate to the satisfaction of the District their 

ability to satisfactorily perform the work in accordance with the RFP requirements will not 

be considered, nor will respondents who do not meet the minimum requirements. 

 
The District shall be the sole judge of the qualifications and services to be offered, and 

its decision shall be final. Discussions may be conducted with respondents who submit 

qualifications determined to be reasonably acceptable of being selected for award: 

 
Scoring Criteria 

 

a) Background: i.e. qualifications, experience, resources, financial solvency. (10 

points) 

b) Litigation Disclosure (25 points) 

c) Project Team & Management Structure: i.e. amount of work self-performed, 

strength of proposed team, trainers, and management structure. (20 points) 

d) Project History & References: i.e. relevant past project experience. (50 points) 

e) Project Approach: i.e. approach to completing study, project management, 

training, etc. (15 points) 

f) Funding Sources: i.e. funding experience & unique funding sources. (25 pts) Page 44 of 247



g) Additional Benefits & Added Value: i.e. additional benefits resulting from 

h) Savings: i.e. savings approach and track record. (35 points) 

i) Contracts & Forms: i.e. sample contracts, terms & conditions, pricing proposal, and 

completed forms. (30 points) 

j) Response: responsiveness and compliance with the requirements of the 

proposal. (5 points) 

Total Maximum Point Valuation: 225 

Page 45 of 247



 

PRICING PROPOSAL 

RFP # 2021-01 
Infrastructure Modernization & Utility Savings Program 

 
 

Pursuant to and in compliance with your Notice Requesting Proposals and all other documents 
relating thereto, the undersigned respondent, having familiarized himself with the terms and 
conditions of the proposal documents, hereby proposes and agrees to perform the work to be 
done and to provide all labor and materials necessary to perform the work. 

 
 

Name of Respondent:    
 
 
 

INVESTMENT GRADE AUDIT (IGA): 

 

Does the respondent require an IGA agreement be entered into before a scope of work, 
price and savings can be finalized? 

 
YES NO 

 
If an IGA agreement is required, does it include exit fees and/or penalties in the event the 
District chooses to not implement the IGA findings? 

 
YES NO N/A 

 
What is the  to complete an IGA? 

 

$ per square foot 
 
 
 
 

IMPLEMENTATION: 

 

 

Profit %    

Page 46 of 247



 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

RFP # 2021-01 
Infrastructure Modernization & Utility Savings Program 

 
Pursuant to and in compliance with your Notice Requesting Proposals and all other 

documents relating thereto, the undersigned respondent, having familiarized himself with 

the terms and conditions of the proposal documents, hereby proposed and agrees to 

perform the work to be done and to provide all labor and materials necessary to perform the 

work. 

 
 

Name of Respondent: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENTS: 

 

The respondent acknowledges receipt of issued amendments to RFP # 2021-01: 
 

Amendment 
Number 

     Initial Here 

Date      

 

Page 47 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13f Date: 05/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve quote from Ginno Construction for painting exterior of HHS Gym to be completed summer of 2021. 

 

Background: 
The High School Gym paint is faded, cracking and in disrepair. The building needs a fresh coat of paint. 
Some paint was touched up during the remodel in 2005. This really stands out as a different color. We 
are discussing a slight change to the color as we move forward with the project. We have enclosed three 
bids for the project and recommend Ginno Construction.  

Status: 
Pending board approval  

Fiscal Impact: 
    $38,442 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve quote from Ginno Construction for painting exterior of HHS Gym to be completed 
summer of 2021 

 

Page 48 of 247



 

297 Convair Ave., Ste. 2  License 921238 
Chico, CA  95973 
530-894-6859 phone 
530-894-6061 fax 

 

May 12, 2021 

Hamilton Unified School District 
Maintenance and Transportation 
Alan Joksch 
620 Canal St. 
PO Box 488 
Hamilton City, CA 95951 
 
RE:  Hamilton High School 
 Painting – Exterior Gym 
 
 
We propose to furnish labor and material for the exterior painting of the gym at Hamilton High 
School.  This bid is good for 90 days: 
 
Exterior Gym    $33,857.00  
Face of Pop Letter of Gym      $1,585.00 
Bonding      $3,000.00 
     $38,442.00 
 
Inclusions:   Painting of the exterior of the gym, doors, jambs, and soffits. 
 
Exterior: Prep and protect 
  Pressure wash gym 
  Spot prime walls and soffits as needed    
  Scrape tape off doors and spot prime as needed 
  2 coats finish to walls and soffits 
  2 coats water base high alkyd paint to doors and jambs 
  Clean up all related debris 
 
Exclusions: Crown molding and chair railings; sealing of masonry/concrete or stone   
  products; signage and striping; FRP, staining, or transparent finishes; high- 
  performance coating; fire proofing or intumescent painting; wall   
  coverings/graphics and floor sealers/epoxy coatings; cabinetry, stain and  
  lacquer to cabinets or furniture; lead abatement; sandblasting 
   
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Bryan Ginno 
President 
 

Page 49 of 247



Page 50 of 247



Page 51 of 247



Page 52 of 247



Page 53 of 247



Page 54 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13g Date: 05/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve quote from Tree Worx for tree removal and trimming at Hamilton Elementary on Hwy 45 during 
summer 2021.  

Background: 
Many Modesto Ash Trees are badly infested with Mistletoe and have died or become extremely 
compromised. This has created a dangerous situation along the Western fence line along Hwy 45. 
Branches are becoming brittle and can fall onto the playground or onto cars on the highway. We are 
looking to remove 18 of the most damaged trees and prune the damage from 8 others. All waste is to be 
removed and all stumps will be ground down to a safe height. After the work is completed, we will 
discuss options of re-planting a new line of trees.  
 
We have included bids from three companies for this project. 
 
 

Status:  
Pending board approval  

Fiscal Impact: 
 The total cost will be $29,000 

Educational Impact: 
Will create a safer environment for the students. 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve quote from Tree Worx for tree removal and trimming at Hamilton 
Elementary on Hwy 45 during summer 2021. 

 

Page 55 of 247



 

All work described will be done in a professional manner according to description above per industry standards. Any changes from the above 

description involving extra costs will become an extra charge over and above the contract amount. Contract is contingent to conditions listed above and 

is subject to delays beyond our control. Contractor verifies that company carries all necessary Liability and Workmen’s Compensation Insurance (some 

employees are exempt from carrying this insurance) 

 

Contractors Signature:                                                          Client Signature: 

    CA LIC # 1032127 

Sean Murray 

494 Cimarron Dr, 

Chico, CA, 95973 

Sean_treeservice@yahoo.com 

 

 

Work Order Estimate 

This pricing includes the equipment, materials & labor required for the proper completion of the following tasks 

 

Trees Work Description Cost 

X 2 next to maintenance 

shed 

Tip weight reduction and deadwood removal. 

Roof and building clearance, mitigate any 

hazardous limbs and light trim throughout 

$600 

Fence line removals     1) 

(starting at the             2) 

maintenance shed)       3)                                                                        

.                                   4)  

.                                   5)  

.                                   6) 

.                                   7) 

.                                   8)  

.                                   9)   

.                                 10)  

.                                 11) 

.                                 12) 

.                               *  13) 

.                               *  14)   

.                               *  15)             

.                               *  16)    

.                               *  17)  

.                               *  18)  

Removal and grind stump                                      

Removal and grind stump                              

Removal and grind stump                                   

Removal and grind stump                                  

Removal and grind stump                                    

Removal and grind stump                                   

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                           

Removal and grind stump                        

Removal and grind stump                               

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                     

Removal and grind stump                                                                                                                                                        

$100                                     

$1800                                  

$1600                                  

$2000                                  

$1600                                           

$1600                                               

$1600                                                         

$1800                                                  

$1600                                                   

$2000                                         

$2200                                           

$1400                                         

$1800                                                     

$1500                                           

$2000                                    

$1800                                                  

$1600                                 

$2200 

                                                                                 Total Due 

                                                                                                                                          

Name: Alan Joksch – Hamilton City Elementary School                   Date:  5/12/2021 

Address:  277 Capay Lane, Hamilton City, CA,     

Phone (530) 826-2003                                                                   Email: ajoksch@husdschools.org 

   $30,800  $29,000 

Page 56 of 247



 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

All of the Modesto Ash trees are badly infested with mistletoe and are extremely dangerous. 

Every tree has severely compromised limbs and should be removed. There are holes all over 

the trees and they are showing signs of fracturing and cracking under the heavy weight of the 

mistletoe. Not to mention that most of the now heavy limbs are dead and are even more prone 

to breaking. 

*** Trees 13 and 14 – There was a discussion about trying to save these trees. I strongly believe 

that after a thorough inspection, they should be removed. There are serious holes and decay 

towards the bottom of the tree. The trees are right over the play ground and structures.  

*** Trees 15 through 18 – Again there was a discussion to try and save these trees. With the 

amount of dead and dying wood appearing throughout these trees, along with the mistletoe 

clearly taking over. I think that removing the mistletoe and reducing the size of the trees 

dramatically is the only option aside removal. Removal is the best option for 3 of these trees, 

(15,16,17). There are multiple holes and fractures near the base of the trees and are over the 

buildings and car parking areas. 18 is the tree with the least amount of damage and the most 

live tissue remaining, we will be able to remove the mistletoe (temporarily, as it always grows 

back) and trim the tree back to a designated section that is believed to be safe. This ‘safe’ 

section could vary dramatically from limb to limb depending on how far back the tree has live 

tissue and no compromised limbs. Even then the tree may die after such a heavy prune in the 

summer. ( I would still recommend removing 15,16,17,18. It is the safest and also the cheapest 

option in the long run). If the decision is made to trim any trees, we can address them as we go. 

(approximately $600/$1000 cheaper per tree to trim as opposed to removing, depending on the 

tree) 

If all work is chosen we will also remove and grind the Walnut next to the maintenance shed at 

no charge. ($2400) Additionally, We will also give a courtesy trim to the walnut inside the 

fence, removing all deadwood and lightly trimming any heavy areas as well as include the $600 

trimming for the 2 trees next to the maintenance shed. 

All prices include all insurances, bonds and prevailing 

wages. Which will bring the total to $29,000.00 

We will have multiple logs from the removal process and would like to propose that we 

can make some benches out of them for the playground area. It would be free and It 

would create a use for some of the wood rather than just throw it away. 

I would like to introduce a planting program with the school. For every tree we remove 

(not just this job) I would like to donate 2 seedlings towards a planting day for the kids.  

I would help with the planting if we could find a designated spot. I would also bring 

some tree info and would love to talk to the kids about how important trees are, how 

they grow, what they do for us, etc…. Hopefully bringing some useful information and 

awareness about trees.  

Page 57 of 247



  

 Registration Services:: Page 1 of 2 5/12/2021 5:08:13 PM 

 

APPLICATION FOR  

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION  

 
Registration Information 

Type: Public Works 

Period: 05/12/2021 06/30/2021 

Contractor Information 

Contractor Name: Sean Phillip Murray 

Trade Name: Tree Worx 

License Type Number: PW-LR-1000750577 

Contractor Physical Address 

Physical Business Country: United States of America Physical Business City/ 
Province: 

Chico 

Physical Business Address: 494 Cimarron Drive  Physical Business State: CA 

  Physical Business Postal 
Code: 

95973 

Contractor Mailing Address 

Mailing Country: United States of America Mailing City /Province: Chico 

Mailing Address: 494 Cimarron Drive  Mailing State: CA 

  Mailing Postal Code: 95973 

Contact Info 
Daytime Phone:  Daytime Phone Ext.:  

Mobile Phone:  Business Email:  sean_treeservice@yahoo.com 

  Applicant’s Email: sean_treeservice@yahoo.com 

Page 58 of 247



 Registration Services:: Page 2 of 2 

Workers’ Compensation 
Professional Employer Organization (PEO) 

Do you lease employees through Professional Employer Organization? No 

 

Workers’ Compensation Overview 

 

 

    

Carrier: State Compensation Fund Inception Date: 02/13/2021 

Policyholder Name: Sean P Murray Tree Care DBA 
Tree Worx 

Expiration Date: February 13, 2022 

Policy Number:  927042621   

 

Certification 
Yes I certify that I do not have any delinquent liability to an employee or the state for any assessment of back 

wages or related damages, interest, fines, or penalties pursuant to any final judgment, order, or determination 
by a court or any federal, state, or local administrative agency, including a confirmed arbitration award 

 I certify that the contractor is not currently debarred under Section 1777.1 or under any other federal or state 
law providing for the debarment of contractors from public works. 

Yes I certify that one of the following is true: (1) I am licensed by the Contractors State License Board (CSLB) in 
accordance with Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of the Business and Professions Code; or (2) my 
business or trade is not subject to licensing by the CSLB. 

 I understand refunds are not authorized 

I, Sean P Murray, the undersigned, am , Sean Phillip Murray with the authority to act for and on behalf of the above named contractor. I 
certify under penalty of perjury that all of the above information provided is true and correct. I further acknowledge that any untruthful 
information provided in this application could result in the certification being canceled. 
 
I certify this on: 5:04 PM 

Legal Entity Information 
Legal Entity Type: Sole Proprietorship 

 

Name: Sean Phillip Murray 

Page 59 of 247



Page 60 of 247



Page 61 of 247



Page 62 of 247



Page 63 of 247



Page 64 of 247



Page 65 of 247



Page 66 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13h Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve quote from Steel-Crete Inc. for HES fencing 

Background: 
The chain link fence in front of the elementary school provides a safety hazard in several ways. There is 
no easy out in the case of an emergency. It is difficult to secure the various existing gates. By removing 
the chain link fence and replacing with a wrought iron fence these safety hazards will be addressed. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
The cost is $53,505.00 

Educational Impact: 
Will provide a safe environment for learning 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve quote from Steel-Crete Inc. for HES fencing 

 

Page 67 of 247



PROJECT:  HC Elementary fence Bid Date: 4/9/2021

Bid #: 21-057

SUBMITTED BY: Craig Johnson Prev. Wage: Yes

Location: Hamilton City

Addendums Inc.-

Description of Work: Total Price:

A) Demo existing fence / gates and install temp fence, install new black powdercoat 39,777.00$          

     2.5"x2.5" posts, install ~475' of new 6' black powdercoat heavy fence panels, w/

     2ea. 10' gates, 4ea. 7'-6" gates, 3 ea reg. 3' man gates, (one ready to receive panic 

     jardware by others) and 1ea. 7' rolloing gate.

B) Demo ~160' of exist. Fence & posts, install temp fence, install new black powder- 13,728.00$          

      2.5"x2.5" posts, install ~160' of new 6' black powdercoat heavy fence panels.

NOTE: Due to current global steel issues, the bid price is only good for 30 days.

Clarifications:  1) All steel to be primed only as required.

   2) No engineering or permits included in price.

   3) No OT or weekend work included.

   4) Equipment required to be provided by Steel-Crete UNO.

   5) Bid does not include any special safety training time.  

   6) All wet set anchors (FOB Site) & installed by others UNO.

   7) Grouting if required by others.

   8) Testing or field review / certification costs by others.

   9) Priming field welds by others.

  10) No supervision of layout, setting or placing anchor bolts or embeds.

  11) No Safety railing, guards, toe boards, etc. for other trades.

  12) No Weld inspection and associated costs.

  13) No Light gauge framing, non-ferrous metals or sheet metal.

  14) No fire watch or protection for work above or below our work area.

  15) No removing, replacing or installing fireproofing.

  16) Max. of one template per anchor bolt set,

  17) GC's are to set (1ea.) anchor bolt nut to grade on each AB group.

  18) No demolition of any kind UNO.

  19) Any wall/ground penetrating X-ray's for rebar/utility ID is by others.

  20) Gate Hardeware provided & installed by others.

53,505.00$             

****Payment is due at Net-30 days from time invoice is submitted/work is furnished**

We include (1) mobilization (s), additional mobilizations @ $1,000.00 each

Assumptions and Exclusions:

1

2

3

4

5

6

If you should have any questions or concerns please do not hesitate to contact me at:

Phone:  530-520-6776

Email:  Craig@steel-crete.com

Craig Johnson
Sr. Proj. Mgr.

If payment to Steel-Crete Inc. is delayed because (a) Owner fails to make timely payment of 

amounts certified and approved, or (b) Contractor fails to make timely payment after receiving 

funds from the owner for Steel-Crete Inc. work, or (c) because Owner declines to approve or 

certify payment for reasons not the fault of or directly related to Steel-Crete Inc. work, then Steel-

Crete Inc. may suspend work after giving at least five (5) days written notice to Contractor of the 

intent to suspend and the date of intended suspension. Should Steel-Crete Inc. work be 

thereafter suspended for at least twenty-one (21) days, Steel-Crete Inc. and may terminate the 

subcontract upon written notice of termination to Contractor. Steel-Crete Inc. shall be entitled to 

payment in full for all work performed, plus twenty eight percent (28%) of the estimated value of 

the terminated work to compensate Steel-Crete Inc. for demobilization, loss of overhead, This proposal must be made a part of any Subcontract, Purchase Agreement or Change Order 

issued by the Prime Contractor. 

We exclude all permits, engineering, underground utility location (except as identified by USA 

Underground) and the costs of complying with owner restrictions unless specifically listed above.

      STEEL-CRETE Inc.

Prices are valid for 30 days from submittal date.

Steel-Crete Inc. reserves the right to amend the proposed costs due to changes in material costs 

or if the project changes in any way either by addition or deletion of any items listed in this Bid.

                1692 Mangrove Avenue, #504, Chico, CA 95928 - (530) 624-4986   -   Lic. 803951   -   DIR #1000410544

Free and Clear access for delivery, work trucks and erection equipment.

Page 68 of 247



Page 69 of 247



Andrew Gateminder

13 Freight Ln
Chico, CA  95973 US
15gminder51@gmail.com
andrewgateminder.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Hamilton Unified School District

ESTIMATE # 1207
DATE 05/11/2021

  

SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

6x8 regal panel 70 309.89 21,692.30T

2x2 post 71 83.74 5,945.54T

install labor 1 4,340.80 4,340.80T

 

SUBTOTAL 31,978.64
TAX 2,318.46
TOTAL $34,297.10

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 70 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13i Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve agreement between HUSD and Gaynor to install and maintain network intercom server pending 
CDE approval ESSER Expenditure. 

Background:  
This project will tie together paging, clock, and bells system that integrates directly into our new NEC 
phone system. Upon completion of this project, the District will have multiple ways to communicate 
health and safety updates for staff and students. This project has been needed for many years. It was 
originally part of the phone system project but it was broken off into it’s own project due to cost and 
funding.  

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact:  
One-time purchase that ties into our phone system. Price is listed on Quote/Contract. 

Educational Impact:  
Unified Bells, Clock, and Paging (interior and exterior). Provides multiple layers of safety and health for 
students and staff.  
 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve agreement between HUSD and Gaynor to install and maintain network 
intercom server pending CDE approval ESSER Expenditure. 
 

 

Page 71 of 247



Page 72 of 247



Page 73 of 247



Page 74 of 247



Page 75 of 247



Page 76 of 247



Page 77 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13j Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve proposal from CSEA to HUSD 2019-20 Sunshine Reopener 

Background: 
 
This item was brought to the attention of the current Superintendent by CSEA President, Chris DeVries, 
regarding the need to further negotiate one item from the 2019-2020 contract negotiations. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
 To be negotiated. 

Educational Impact:  
N/A 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve proposal from CSEA to HUSD 2019-20 Sunshine Reopener 

 

Page 78 of 247



Page 79 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13k Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Adopt Resolution Number 20-21-107: A resolution authorizing the establishment of Fund 08 – Student 
Activity Special Revenue Fund. 
 

Background:   
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84 became effective for the 2019-20 
school year; however, it was subsequently delayed for one year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  GASB 
84 states that if a Districts’ ASB’s are considered non-fiduciary, those funds should be accounted for in a 
governmental fund. Our ASB’s are considered non-fiduciary so the District has the option to account for 
the funds in Fund 01 (General Fund) or Fund 08.  The District has opted to establish Fund 08 to account 
for the ASB funds instead of using the Fund 01 so as to keep more identifiable and separate from the 
General Fund. 

Status:   
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:  
n/a 

Educational Impact:  
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend board adopt Resolution Number 20-21-107: A resolution authorizing the establishment of 
Fund 08 – Student Activity Special Revenue Fund. 

 

Page 80 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-21-107 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD AUTHORIZING                                  

THE ESTABLISHMENT OF FUND 08 –                                                                                                                         
STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Hamilton Unified School District and hereby 

ordered that: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has authorized/approved, per Education Code 48930 students at 

Hamilton Unified School District to organize a student body association within its public schools; and 

WHEREAS, per Education Code 48933(b) & 48938 the District recognizes their administrative 

involvement in the Associated Student Body (ASB) Activities; and  

WHEREAS, per GASB Statement 84, effective 2019-20, the District has determined that the ASB 

Activities within its public schools do not meet the fiduciary criteria (per GASB 84, paragraph 11(c2)); 
and 

WHEREAS, school districts are authorized by Education Code 48930, 48933(b), & 48938 to organize 

ASB’s and by GASB 84, to establish a restricted governmental fund known as the Student Activity Special 
Revenue Fund 08;  

BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Glenn County Auditor 

and Treasurer to establish a restricted fund to be known as the Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 
(08). 

THIS RESOLUTION is effective on the date of adoption until revoked or superseded. 

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School 

District this 19th day of May 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES:  ____ 

NOES: _____ 

ABSENT:  _____ 

 

I, _____________________________________, Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly passed and adopted by said 
Board at a regularly called and conducted meeting held on said date. 

 

________________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board 

Page 81 of 247



Fiscal Alert

FCMAT
Michael H. Fine 
Chief Executive Officer

1300 17th Street - City Centre 
Bakersfield, CA 93301-4533 
Telephone 661-636-4611 
Fax 661-636-4647

755 Baywood Drive,  
Second Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954  
Telephone 707-775-2850  
www.fcmat.org

Administrative Agent 
Mary C. Barlow 
Office of Kern County  
Superintendent of Schools

May 2020

GASB 84 and its Impact on Associated 
Student Body Accounts
This fiscal alert addresses the impact to associated student body (ASB) accounts 
resulting from Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 84 (Statement), Fiduciary Activities. This guidance is provided in response 
to questions from county offices of education and school districts throughout 
California, and has been addressed by the California Department of Education’s 
School Fiscal Services Division at numerous statewide meetings, including 
recent Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) forums. This alert includes 
local education agency (LEA) considerations and practical applications to help 
LEAs conform with the provisions of the Statement. It should be considered 
analysis rather than legal advice, and all LEAs are encouraged to seek additional 
guidance from their external auditors.

Background
As outlined by GASB, Statement No. 84 was issued to provide guidance for 
identifying fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes, as 
well as how those activities should be reported. 

As indicated in the Statement’s summary:

The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of 
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is 
on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship 
exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component 
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities.

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund 
in the basic financial statements. Governments with activities meeting 
the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position. 

The Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, 
if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) 
investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial 
funds. 

Page 82 of 247

www.fcmat.org


2

FCMAT Fiscal Alert • GASB 84 and its Impact on Associated Student Body  Accounts May 2020

Custodial funds [such as student body accounts] generally should report 
fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or under an equivalent arrangement 
that meets specific criteria. 

Also according to the Statement:

A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial 
statements of a primary government, should combine its information with 
its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that 
combined information with the primary government’s fiduciary funds.

As further indicated in the Statement itself, the purpose of GASB 84 is to improve 
reporting:

The requirements of the Statement will enhance consistency and comparability 
by (1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported 
as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities 
should report their fiduciary activities. Greater consistency and comparability 
enhance the value provided by the information reported in financial statements 
for assessing government accountability and stewardship.

The Statement became effective for the 2019-20 fiscal year; however, in March 2020 
GASB proposed postponing the implementation of all recent statement and implemen-
tation guide provisions, including Statement No. 84. Due to the closure of many state 
and local government offices resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, many government 
officials do not have access to the information needed to implement new GASB 
pronouncements. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board subsequently issued 
an exposure draft (in April 2020) proposing a one-year delay in implementation. Final 
guidance following public comment is expected in the near future.

Despite the potential delay, FCMAT is issuing the following guidance to allow LEAs to 
begin, or continue, preparations to implement the Statement’s provisions related to ASB. 

Relevant Issues
Determining whether ASB funds meet the definition of “fiduciary” within the provisions of 
Statement No. 84 is paramount. Paragraph 11.c. of the Statement states, “the activity is a 
fiduciary activity if…the assets are for the benefit of individuals and the government does 
not have administrative involvement with the assets or direct financial involvement with 
the assets.”  Because a lack of “administrative involvement” is necessary for an activity to 
qualify as fiduciary, it is likely that all ASBs in California will be considered nonfiduciary. 

Unorganized ASBs are typically those in elementary schools, adult education programs, 
continuation schools, special education programs, regional occupational programs (ROPs) 
and K-8 schools.   Although students in unorganized ASBs raise funds, they usually have 
more limited involvement in making decisions about fundraising events and how the 
funds are to be spent. The governing board may delegate its authority to oversee the 
raising and spending of funds to the principal or other school administrator or employee, 

Page 83 of 247



3

FCMAT Fiscal Alert • GASB 84 and its Impact on Associated Student Body  Accounts May 2020

who is authorized to make all decisions related to ASB operations and funds. As such, 
there is considerable administrative involvement in an unorganized ASB.

In organized ASBs in middle schools, high schools and community colleges, the students 
retain substantially more control over their activities and funds, with oversight by district 
administrators and advisors. Students in organized ASBs are primarily responsible for 
their organizations, with the student council and student club leaders holding formal 
meetings, developing budgets, planning fundraisers, and approving payments, with 
district co-approval (including via board designees and certificated advisors). 

Although students in an organized ASB have primary authority over the use of their funds, 
the school administrator(s) and club advisor(s) assist, advise and co-approve student 
decisions. Considerably less administrative involvement exists than in unorganized ASBs; 
however, the LEA must still co-approve all expenditures of the student body. Specifically, 
Education Code Section 48933(b) states the following:

The funds shall be expended subject to such procedure as may be established 
by the student body organization subject to the approval of each of the following 
three persons, which shall be obtained each time before any of the funds may 
be expended: an employee or official of the school district designated by the 
governing board, the certificated employee who is the designated adviser of 
the particular student body organization, and a representative of the particular 
student body organization.

In addition, in both an organized and unorganized ASB, students receive approval from 
the governing board to conduct all fundraising activities. Education Code Section 48932 
states:

The governing board of any school district may authorize any organization 
composed entirely of pupils attending the schools of the district to maintain such 
activities, including fund-raising activities, as may be approved by the governing 
board.

The governing board of any school district may, by resolution, authorize any 
student body organization to conduct fund-raising activities on school property 
during school hours provided that the governing board has determined that such 
activities will not interfere with the normal conduct of the schools.

Accordingly, both organized and unorganized ASBs should be considered nonfiduciary 
for the purposes of Statement No. 84. Even scholarship or memorial accounts within an 
ASB are subject to the same administrative oversight and approval processes as other 
ASB funds, with additional criteria for administering these funds. Where potential excep-
tions may exist, such as for scholarship or memorial accounts that are outside of ASB and 
are administered by the district, FCMAT recommends consulting with the district’s external 
auditors or legal counsel for a more definitive determination. 

Page 84 of 247



4

FCMAT Fiscal Alert • GASB 84 and its Impact on Associated Student Body  Accounts May 2020

Reporting Requirements
Although it is unlikely a district would have an ASB that meets the definition of fiduciary 
under Statement No. 84, such an account would continue to be reported in Fund 95 as a 
student body fund. Otherwise, all ASB accounts that do not meet the definition of fiduciary 
are considered governmental activities and should be reported in a governmental fund.

Local education agencies will have two reporting options for nonfiduciary ASBs: using 
either a new special reserve fund or the general fund.

1. Reporting in a special reserve fund (Fund 08)

 LEAs have the option of establishing a special reserve fund, Fund 08, to 
record ASB activity that is determined to be governmental rather than 
fiduciary. According to the California Department of Education’s School 
Fiscal Services Division, the new special reserve fund will have the following 
characteristics:

• The fund is intended for use by county offices of education, school 
districts, and charter schools.

• The indirect cost rate calculation will be revised to include Fund 08 expen-
ditures, as indirect costs may be an allowable ASB expenditure.

 FCMAT recommends that LEAs that intend to use this option seek adoption of 
a board resolution to formally establish the fund.

2. Reporting in the general fund

 Alternatively, LEAs may choose to report nonfiduciary activity within the 
general fund, using coding specific to ASB activity as identified below.

Regardless of the reporting option chosen, a new restricted resource has been estab-
lished for reporting and tracking nonfiduciary ASB activity. The resource, titled Student 
Activity Funds (8210), will be mandatory for both options, with a range of resources from 
8201 through 8299 reserved for local use to allow LEAs to track specific ASB activities. 
The resource will be open to Fund 01, Fund 08, Fund 09 (charter schools special reserve 
fund), and Fund 62 (charter schools enterprise fund), and will be excluded from the 
minimum classroom compensation calculation.

Other Considerations
Some LEAs may choose to begin recording all ASB transactions directly in the LEA’s 
financial system, although the use of a separate electronic or manual ASB bookkeeping 
system may continue if desired. In some instances, LEAs may choose to record ASB 
activity within an existing account, such as a school site budget account, and track the 
activity using ASB-specific coding. It is important, however, that any activity be periodically 
recorded or imported into the LEA’s financial system, either into the special reserve fund 
or the general fund. Each LEA will need to determine if this is accomplished through an 
ongoing process, or if ending balances are imported only at year end. When a separate 

Page 85 of 247



5

FCMAT Fiscal Alert • GASB 84 and its Impact on Associated Student Body  Accounts May 2020

ASB system and/or bank account is used, the transaction detail and frequency of 
importing data into the LEA’s financial system will vary depending on the financial systems 
involved, the size of the ASB, available LEA resources, technological capabilities, and so 
on.

Some LEAs, especially those with smaller student body accounts, may also choose to 
move ASB funds to their county treasurer rather than maintain the funds in a separate 
bank account. However, the use of a local bank is still permissible and may continue if the 
LEA allows it.  

Conclusion
Each LEA will need to determine how best to record their ASB activity within the guide-
lines of GASB Statement No. 84. Although there is a potential delay in the reporting 
requirements, GASB continues to encourage early implementation regardless of whether 
an LEA’s 2019-20 annual independent audit will require this new reporting. If questions 
arise regarding fiduciary versus nonfiduciary activities or the new reporting requirements 
under Statement No. 84, FCMAT recommends an LEA consult with its external auditors or 
legal counsel.

The entire text of the GASB Statement No. 84 can be found here.  

Page 86 of 247

https://gasb.org/jsp/GASB/Document_C/DocumentPage?cid=1176168786182&acceptedDisclaimer=true


HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13l Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Perkins Grant: Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act-
Amount 

$7,155. 

Background: 

• Perkins funding is designed to align high school students will college and career ready 
indicators. High-quality CTE pathways and programs of study are included in a school 
improvement strategy. 

• Should prioritize improving the performance of student subgroups. 
• Should prioritize high-quality CTE programs and programs of study that have a CTSO. 
• Teachers need to have a CTE credential. 

Status: 

Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact:  

None 

Educational Impact:  

Strengthens CTE program. 

Recommendation: 

Recommend board approve Perkins Grant: Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 

21st Century Act -Amount $7,155. 

 

Page 87 of 247



Page 88 of 247



Page 89 of 247



Page 90 of 247



Page 91 of 247



Page 92 of 247



Page 93 of 247



Page 94 of 247



Page 95 of 247



Page 96 of 247



Page 97 of 247



Page 98 of 247



Page 99 of 247



Page 100 of 247



Page 101 of 247



Page 102 of 247



Page 103 of 247



Page 104 of 247



Page 105 of 247



Page 106 of 247



Page 107 of 247



Page 108 of 247



Page 109 of 247



Page 110 of 247



Page 111 of 247



Page 112 of 247



Page 113 of 247



Page 114 of 247



Page 115 of 247



Page 116 of 247



Page 117 of 247



Page 118 of 247



Page 119 of 247



Page 120 of 247



Page 121 of 247



Page 122 of 247



Page 123 of 247



Page 124 of 247



Page 125 of 247



Page 126 of 247



Page 127 of 247



Page 128 of 247



Page 129 of 247



Page 130 of 247



Page 131 of 247



Page 132 of 247



Page 133 of 247



Page 134 of 247



Page 135 of 247



Page 136 of 247



Page 137 of 247



Page 138 of 247



Page 139 of 247



Page 140 of 247



Page 141 of 247



Page 142 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 13m Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Agriculture Incentive Grant Amount 

$30,124 

Background: 

The Agricultural Career Technical Education Incentive Grant provides local educational agencies 

(LEAs) with funds to improve the quality of their agricultural career technical education programs. 

The goal is to maintain a high-quality, comprehensive agricultural career technical program in 

California's public school system to ensure a constant source of employable, trained, and skilled 

individuals. 

 
Grant amount is based on number of ag teachers, FFA activities checklist, in-service activities, class size, 

extended contract and project period, number of students on FFA Roster, and Quality Criterion 12. 

 
Grant amount increased over previous year due to hiring a 3rd ag teacher. Grant is funded depending upon 

how many schools submit, and how many meet categories. Amount awarded is usually less than application 

amount. 

Status: 

Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: Matching Grant  

(Match comes from Perkins, classroom budgets, FFA, Friends of Hamilton City FFA, and Floral Club.) 

Educational Impact:  

Strengthens CTE Classes and FFA 

Recommendation: 

Recommend board approve Agriculture Incentive Grant 

 

Page 143 of 247



Page 144 of 247



Page 145 of 247



P
age 146 of 247



Page 147 of 247



Page 148 of 247



Page 149 of 247



P
age 150 of 247



Page 151 of 247



Page 152 of 247



Page 153 of 247



Page 154 of 247



Page 155 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 13n Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Amount 

$156,685 Match is $313,370 

Background: 

Program established as a state education, economic, and workforce development initiative to 

provide pupils with the knowledge and skills necessary to transition to employment and 

postsecondary education. Teachers must hold a CTE credential and have a recognized student 

organization. 

Allowable Activities and Costs - Funds provided under the CTEIG grant may be used for, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

 
1. Purchase and/or develop evidence-based, standards-based curriculum and instructional 

materials that focus on career technical pathway courses through a collaborative effort 

with secondary, postsecondary, and industry. This could include the development of 

updated or new career technical pathway courses, articulated and dual credit courses, 

curriculum to support leadership and work-based learning, and/or the development of 

curriculum and activities that lead to industry-recognized certifications or credentials; 

2. CTE Professional Development to enhance teaching and learning; 

3. Training and planning meetings between district CTE Advisory Committee personnel, 

including counselors, parents, college faculty, and business leaders, to support program 

sustainability and build local and regional awareness on the benefits of having such 

programs; 

4. Purchase of CTE equipment and materials needed to maintain industry standards; 

5. Transportation and other expenses that enable CTE leadership and work-based learning 

activities, including after-school, extended day, and out-of-school opportunities; 

6. Food and refreshments for CTE conference travel, student field trips and special events, and 

working CTE Advisory Committee and partnership meetings; 

7. Pupil support services; 
8. Facility repair for use of CTE program specific course equipment for industry skills 

attainment; and 

9. Purchase or rent vehicles exclusively for CTE use and available for use by all CTE 

programs. Capital outlay requests for vehicle purchases must be submitted to the 

regional COE Consultant for review and approval. 

Status: 

Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: None Match is based on salaries and benefits of CTE teachers, FFA, Ag Incentive Grant, Perkins, 

Floral Club, and Friends of HC FFA. 

Educational Impact:  

Strengthens CTE Classes and FFA 

Recommendation: 

Recommend board approve Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

 Page 156 of 247



Page 157 of 247



Page 158 of 247



Page 159 of 247



Page 160 of 247



P
age 161 of 247



P
age 162 of 247



P
age 163 of 247



P
age 164 of 247



P
age 165 of 247



P
age 166 of 247



P
age 167 of 247



P
age 168 of 247



P
age 169 of 247



Page 170 of 247



Page 171 of 247



Page 172 of 247



Page 173 of 247



Page 174 of 247



Page 175 of 247



Page 176 of 247



Page 177 of 247



Page 178 of 247



Page 179 of 247



Page 180 of 247



Page 181 of 247



Page 182 of 247



Page 183 of 247



Page 184 of 247



Page 185 of 247



Page 186 of 247



Page 187 of 247



Page 188 of 247



Page 189 of 247



Page 190 of 247



Page 191 of 247



Page 192 of 247



Page 193 of 247



Page 194 of 247



Page 195 of 247



Page 196 of 247



Page 197 of 247



Page 198 of 247



Page 199 of 247



Page 200 of 247



Page 201 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13o Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Authorize four 10-hour day work weeks for administrative assistants June through August 2021. 

Background: 
In previous summers the administrative assistants/confidential employees that work summer and non-
student work weeks have had the HUSD Board approve the option for them to work four ten-hour work 
weeks June through August instead of the traditional five eight-hour days during the rest of the school 
year. 
 
If approved, each employee will work closely with their immediate supervisor to create a work schedule 
that will maximize productivity without impact to the students and families that we serve. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board authorize four 10-hour day work weeks for administrative assistants June through 
August 2021. 

 

Page 202 of 247



Page 203 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13p Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Approve GCOE MOU Agreement for Technology Support Services July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 

Background:   
 
The July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 MOU Agreement is between GCOE and the District for 
Technology Support Services.  In the past, the District hired personnel for Technology Support Services.  
Beginning with the 2020-21 school year, the District and GCOE entered into a MOU so GCOE would 
provide these services.  The attached agreement for 2021-22 remains the same as the 2020-21 
agreement. 

Status:   
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:  
$40,000 General Fund expenditure. 

Educational Impact:  
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend board approve GCOE MOU Agreement for Technology Support Services July 1, 2021 
through June 30, 2022. 

 

Page 204 of 247



Glenn County Office of Education 
Tracey Quarne, Superintendent 

311 South Villa Avenue ● Willows, California 95988 

(530) 934-6575 Ph  ● (530) 934-6576 Fax 

Information Technology Department 

1 of 2 

Rev 5/6/2021 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (M.O.U.) 

Agreement for Technology Support Services 

 

 

This agreement is made and entered by and between the Glenn County Office of Education, hereinafter referred 

to as “GCOE”, and the Hamilton Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as “HUSD”.  The term of this 

agreement shall be from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.  GCOE, while engaged in the performance of this 

contract is acting as an independent contractor, and is not an officer, agent, or employee of HUSD. 

 

GCOE agrees to provide the following services as a standard bundled service package: 

 

WAN-Wide Area Network Support 

 

Support the WAN links between each of your school 

sites. 

LAN – Local Area Network Support 

 

Support all connections and cable runs at each school 

site including patch cables and switch ports. 

Server Support – Software & Hardware 

 

Support all hardware equipment and software owned 

by HUSD including software updates & upgrades. 

Network Monitoring Support 

 

Monitoring of all Router end points, and servers. 

Router/Switches/Firewall Support 

 

Support all Router, Switch, and Firewall 

configurations. 

Email Service Support 

 

Support existing Exchange Server and mailbox 

accounts. 

Helpdesk Service Support 

 

Support all technology related helpdesk calls and work 

orders. 

Spam & Content Filtering Support 

 

Support existing Spam/Content Filter 

QSS/Financial System Support 

 

Support VPN access and connection issues related to 

QSS/QCC. 

Desktop/Laptop/Printer/Copier/Misc Device Support 

 

All Desktop end user support for PC’s, laptops, 

copier/printer, projector, or any other electronic end 

user device owned by HUSD. 

Virus Protection Support 

 

Technical support related to any virus issue possibly 

including retrieval of missing files, re-installation of 

necessary software, and other services required to 

place devices and servers back into service. 

Aeries.NET Support All services related to supporting the 

hardware/software of the system including required 

updates and upgrades.   

Cell Phone Support Provide assistance in the support of district provided 

cell phones. 

 

Assist in Public Records Requests 

 

Assistance with public records request that relate to 

technology or email.   

Page 205 of 247



Glenn County Office of Education 
Tracey Quarne, Superintendent 

311 South Villa Avenue ● Willows, California 95988 

(530) 934-6575 Ph  ● (530) 934-6576 Fax 

Information Technology Department 

2 of 2 

Rev 5/6/2021 

Monitor Network Abuses Monitor issues involving abuses, misconduct, and/or 

violations to acceptable use policies.   

Technology Planning Support 

 

Assist in technology planning and recommendation of 

equipment, standardization, and replacement cycle 

policies.   

Technology Purchasing 

 

Assist with recommendations for technology 

purchases and replacement cycles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUSD is responsible for equipment purchases.  GCOE will not assume costs, support contracts, or leases. 

 

HUSD will be responsible for all district licensing and renewals. 

 

HUSD will have full time in-district support (5 days a week). 

 

In exchange for services, HUSD agrees to pay GCOE in the amount of $40,000.00 a year, to be billed quarterly. 

 

Both parties mutually agree to hold each agency harmless for executing the actions set forth within the terms 

and provisions of this agreement. 

 

This agreement may only be amended in writing with mutual consent by both parties.  If for whatever reason 

either party wishes to rescind this agreement at any time, a written 30-day notice must be provided.  The 

remaining balance and/or refund will be calculated and pro-rated. 

 

 

 

Glenn County Office of Education    Hamilton Unified School District 

 

 

 

Signed:  _________________________________  Signed:  __________________________________ 

 

 

________________________________________  __________________________________________ 

  Print Name       Print Name 

 

________________________________________  __________________________________________ 

  Title        Title 

 

 

Date:  ___________________________________  Date:  ____________________________________ 

Page 206 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 13q Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:  
 
Superintendent to notify Golden State Risk Management Authority 
(GSRMA) Board of Directors of HUSD’s intent to possibly withdraw membership effective July 1, 2022. 
 

Background:  
 
A letter is required to be submitted to GSRMA by June 30, 2021 if a member intends to withdraw 
membership effective July 1, 2022. HUSD will again be reaching out to TCSIG to see how their services 
and costs compare to GSRMA so a decision can be made if HUSD will remain with GSRMA or join TCSIG. 

 
HUSD will confirm intention to withdraw or retain GSRMA membership prior to June 1, 2022. 

Status:  
Pending Board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:  
n/a 

Educational Impact:  
n/a 

Recommendation:  
Recommend Board approve the Superintendent to notify GSRMA Board of Directors of HUSD’s intent to 
possibly withdraw membership effective July 1, 2022. 

 

Page 207 of 247



Page 208 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13r Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve the 2020-21 Certificated (Teacher/Counselor) Salary Schedule containing 1% retroactive. 

Background:  
The School Board approved a 1% retro on the 2020-21 Certificated (Teacher/Counselor) salary schedule 
on 4/28/2021. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact:  
A 1% retro will be paid to from the current year budget (2020-21). Cost of a 1% increase is $37,190 per 
Form Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement which was approved 4/28/2021. 
Anticipated pay date is 5/31/2021. 
 

Educational Impact:  
None. 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board approve the Certificated 2020-21 (Teacher/Counselor) Salary Schedule containing 1% 
retroactive. 

 

Page 209 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE

TEACHERS
DISTRICT COUNSELORS/DEAN OF STUDENTS

2020-2021
CAP $11,370

STEP COLUMN I COLUMN II COLUMN III COLUMN IV COLUMN V*
Less than 
clear  BA+ BA + 30 BA + 45

MA + 12          
BA + 60 MA + PPS

1 42,137 47,534 49,991 52,407 65,943

2 43,394 48,959 51,410 53,981 67,519

3 44,702 50,433 52,952 55,600 69,138

4 49,936 51,944 54,539 57,266 70,806

5 53,504 56,176 58,983 72,524

6 55,107 57,859 60,757 74,299

7 56,763 59,597 62,578 76,122

8 58,464 61,384 64,453 77,999

9 63,228 66,388 79,934

10 65,122 68,380 81,928

11 67,076 70,429 83,979

12 69,091 72,548 86,100

13 74,721 88,274

14 76,964 90,520

15 79,270 92,827

16 - 19 81,656 95,218

20 - 23 84,643 98,205

24 - 27 86,619 100,185

28 over 89,221 102,787

184 days for Teachers (Columns I - IV), 181 days in 2020-21

*194 days for District Counselors/Dean of Students (Column V), 191 days in 2020-21

Effective July 1, 2020 1% board approved retro 4/28/21

CAP $11,370

Master's stipend $800

Page 210 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number:  13s Date:  5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Approve a 1% salary schedule increase for 2020-21 uniform with Certificated Teachers/Counselors for 
Classified/Confidential, Certificated Management, Chief Business Official, Superintendent and Other Duty 
(Adult Ed Teacher I position only) consistent with past practice and employment agreements. 
 

Background:   
It has been past practice and included in employment agreements that if an employee group receives an 
increase on the salary schedule, all other employees will receive the same. 

Status:   
Pending Board Approval 

Fiscal Impact:   
A 1% salary schedule increase on the above listed salary schedules will cost $13,788 in 2020-21. 

Educational Impact:  
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend the board approve a 1% salary schedule increase for 2020-21 uniform with Certificated 
Teachers/Counselors for Classified/Confidential, Certificated Management, Chief Business Official, 
Superintendent and Other Duty (Adult Ed Teacher I position only) consistent with past practice and 
employment agreements. 

 

Page 211 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13t Date:  5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Approve the 2020-21 $50,000 bond repayment from the General Fund (Fund 01) to the Building/Bond 
Fund (Fund 21). 
 

Background:   
In 2018-19, a $350,000 transfer from the Building/Bond Fund (Fund 21) to the General Fund (Fund 01) 
occurred to cover unexpected overages on a building project.  The board has determined that the 
transfer that occurred in 2018-19 should be repaid to the Building/Bond Fund.  It was approved that a 
transfer of $50,000 annually will occur beginning in 2020-21.  The $50,000 annually will be transferred 
from either the General Fund (Fund 01) or the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay 
Projects (Fund 17).  The Superintendent is to bring to the board which Fund the transfer will come out of 
for approval.  The $50,000 is currently budgeted in Fund 17, but the District intends to transfer out of 
Fund 01. 

Status:   
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:   
The 2020-21 $50,000 transfer will decrease the General Fund (Fund 01) and increase the Building/Bond 
Fund (Fund 21). 
 

Educational Impact:   
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend the board approve the 2020-21 $50,000 bond repayment from the General Fund (Fund 01) 
to the Building/Bond Fund (Fund 21). 

 

Page 212 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13u Date:  5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Approve Resolution 20-21-108 to establish procedures for transfer of associated student body funds for 
field trip and other activities affected by the shelter in place order N-33-20. 
 

Background:   
The Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student activities, including the 
field trip of the 8th grade class of 2021.  Funds have been raised for the field trip and other activities that 
now cannot take place before the end of the 2020-21 school year.  This Resolution will authorize the 
transfer to the Hamilton High School ASB account, the Hamilton Elementary School ASB funds of the 8th 
graders.  These funds will be spent on a field trip and other activities including graduation activities for 
the students of the Hamilton High School class of 2025. 

Status:   
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:   
n/a 

Educational Impact:   
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend the board approve Resolution 20-21-108 to establish procedures for transfer of associated 
student body funds for field trip and other activities affected by the shelter in place order N-33-20.  

 

Page 213 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION #20-21-108 
 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH PROCEDURES FOR TRANSFER OF ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUNDS 
FOR FIELD TRIP AND OTHER ACTIVITIES AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of a school district may authorize activities of student 
organizations under Education Code sections 48930-48938; 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student 

activities, including the field trip of the 8th grade class of 2021; 
 
WHEREAS, students have raised funds for the field trip and other activities that now cannot 

take place before the end of the 2020-2021 school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, associated student body funds may only be spent on current students of the District; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School 
District, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The Board hereby finds and determines the foregoing recitals to be true and 
correct. 

 
2. Without setting a precedent for future school closures, the Board hereby authorizes 

transfer to the Hamilton High School associated student body (“ASB”) account of any 
Hamilton Elementary School ASB funds raised by the Hamilton Elementary School class of 
2021 for the purpose of funding Hamilton Elementary School 2021 field trip and other 
activities and held in the Hamilton Elementary School ASB class account.  It is further 
resolved that the transferred funds will be held in a distinctly identified account and the 
funds will only be spent on a field trip and other activities including graduation activities for 
the students of the Hamilton High School class of 2025 at any time prior to June 30, 2025. 

 
3. The Board further resolves that any of the remaining money in the distinctly identified ASB 

account will be designated by the Hamilton High School class of 2025 as a gift to the school, 
and that any money remaining in the distinctly identified ASB account on July 1, 2025 will be 
transferred to the ASB general account. 

 
APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School District this 
19th day of May 2021, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:     ABSENT:  
NOES:     ABSTAIN: 
 

I, __________________________, Clerk of the Board, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a special meeting thereof, held at its regular 
place of meeting on the date shown above and by the vote as stated, which resolution is on file in the 
office of said Board. 
 

Signed:   ____________________________ 

Page 214 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13v Date:  5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description:   
Approve Resolution 20-21-109 to recognize student achievement and perseverance during difficult and 
unprecedented circumstances through individualized high school end of year activities for students 
affected by the shelter in place order N-33-20. 
 

Background:   
The Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student activities, including the 
senior trip activities and end of year activities of the 12th grade class of 2021.  Funds have been raised for 
the senior trip activities and other end of year activities that now cannot take place before the end of the 
2020-21 school year.  This Resolution allows the board to recognize achievement, perseverance and the 
completion of the 2020-21 school year by the 12th grade class of 2021 under unprecedented and difficult 
circumstances related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Distribution of these funds will be in equal 
apportionments of the remaining unspent funds in the HHS ASB account to each current 12th grade HHS 
student.  This will allow students to celebrate their achievements in an alternative, individualized setting 
in lieu of class events in light of current social distancing and shelter-in-place orders.   

Status:   
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:   
n/a 

Educational Impact:   
n/a 

Recommendation:   
Recommend the board approve Resolution 20-21-109 to recognize student achievement and 
perseverance during difficult and unprecedented circumstances through individualized high school end 
of year activities for students affected by the shelter in place order N-33-20.  

 

Page 215 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION # 20-21-109 
 

RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND PERSERVERENCE DURING DIFFICULT 
AND UNPRECEDENTED CIRCUMSTANCES THROUGH INDIVIDUALIZED HIGH SCHOOL END OF 

YEAR ACTIVITIES FOR STUDENTS AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of the Hamilton Unified School District (“District”) may 
authorize activities of student organizations under Education Code sections 48930-48938; 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student activities, 
including the senior trip activities and end of year activities of the 12th grade class of 2021; 

 
WHEREAS, District students have raised funds for senior trip activities and other end of year 

activities that now cannot take place before the end of the 2020-2021 school year;  
 

WHEREAS, associated student body funds may only be spent on current students of the District;  
 
WHEREAS, District policy permits associated student body funds to be used on activities that 

promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of the District desires to recognize achievement, perseverance, and the 

completion of the 2020-2021 school year by the 12th grade class of 2021 under unprecedented and 
difficult circumstances related to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School 
District, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The Board hereby finds and determines the foregoing recitals to be true and 
correct. 

 
2. Without setting future precedent, the Board hereby authorizes the distribution in equal 

apportionments of the remaining unspent funds in the Hamilton High School associated 
student body (“ASB”) account to each current 12th grade Hamilton High School student.  It is 
further resolved that the distributed funds are intended to recognize the completion of the 
2020-2021 school year under extremely difficult circumstances by allowing students to 
celebrate their achievements in an alternative, individualized setting in lieu of a class event 
in light of current social distancing and shelter-in-place orders.   

 
3. The Board further resolves that any of the remaining money in the distinctly identified ASB 

account will be designated by the Hamilton High School class of 2021 as a gift to the school, 
and that any money remaining in the distinctly identified ASB account on July 1, 2021, will 
be transferred to the ASB general account. 

            
  

Page 216 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION # 20-21-109 
 

RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND PERSERVERENCE DURING DIFFICULT 
AND UNPRECEDENTED CIRCUMSTANCES THROUGH INDIVIDUALIZED HIGH SCHOOL END OF 

YEAR ACTIVITIES FOR STUDENTS AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 
 

   
APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School District 
this 19th day of May 2021, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 

I, __________________________, Clerk of the Board, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a special meeting thereof, held at its regular 
place of meeting on the date shown above and by the vote as stated, which resolution is on file in the 
office of said Board. 
 

Signed:   ____________________________ 

Page 217 of 247



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13w Date: 5/19/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Appoint Vicky Casillas to serve on Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 

Background: 
With the passing of Measure "C" on November 6, 2018, state law required that Hamilton Unified School 
District appoint a Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee to review the District’s expenditure of bond 
proceeds.   

Per Education Code 15278-15282, the committee must consist of at least seven (7) members who shall 
serve for a minimum term of two (2) years, without compensation, for no more than three (3) 
consecutive terms.  

Committee Responsibilities 

In accordance with Education Code Section 15278(b), the Citizens' Oversight Committee shall: 

• Actively inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond revenues. 
• Review and report on the proper expenditure of taxpayers' money for school construction. 
• Advise the public as to whether the District is in compliance with applicable laws, rules and 

regulations. 
• Ensure that Bond funds are spent only on projects listed in the Bond Project Lists 
• Monitor progress of Bond projects 
• Receive and review the annual performance and financial audits of bond projects. 
• Provide information to the public on the progress of Bond projects and expenditures of Bond 

funds.  

 
Application on file at the Hamilton Unified School District Office.  

All committee appointments are made by the Board of Education from applications submitted to the 
District. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
n/a 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board appoint Vicky Casillas to serve on the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 

 

Page 218 of 247

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.&chapter=1.5.&article=2.


HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
Wednesday, April 28, 2021 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83420112346?pwd=eklPWk1ZWHJya0I4Q2VRcm5ldWU4UT09 
 
Meeting ID: 834 2011 2346 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in: 
        +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 834 2011 2346 
Passcode: 428731 

 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call at 5:30 p.m. 

 

___√____Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President ___√____Rod Boone, Clerk  ___√____Gabriel Leal 

___√____Genaro Reyes    ___√____Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. None 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. Nothing to report out. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  Lead by Mr. Leal. 

 

Page 219 of 247

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83420112346?pwd%3DeklPWk1ZWHJya0I4Q2VRcm5ldWU4UT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1616431688968000&usg=AOvVaw13avxZ-2RrJc84EHr4CVt4


6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
 

Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

7.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 
a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 

i. Mr. Reyes made comments. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 5) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 6) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.7) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 8) 
ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 9) 

iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 10) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 11) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (written) (p. 12) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (written) (p. 13) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 14) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed 

b. Bond Status (Fund 21) Update (p. 16)  
i. Dr. Powell reviewed 

c. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 19) 
i. Mike Cannon reviewed 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. Board Member Participation in End-of-Year Activities 
i. HHS Awards Night – May 25th – Mr. Boone will attend at 7:00 p.m. 

ii. HES Promotion – June 3rd - Mr. Reyes will attend 
iii. HHS Graduation – June 4th – Mr. Odom and Mr. Reyes will attend. 

b. Strategic Planning/LCAP 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed the below and answered questions 

1. 2021-22 Strategic Plan/LCAP Priorities (p. 21) 
2. Updated Strategic Planning – Educational Program (p. 25) 
3. Updated Strategic Planning – Facilities (p. 26) 
4. Updated Strategic Planning – Community Connection and Safety (p. 27) 

c. Bond Fund Project Expenditures 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed the below and asked for direction 

ii. Mr. Odom suggested spending a maximum of $220,000 from bond funds and to look for funding from 
other sources beyond that amount. 

iii. Mr. Leal commented that the intercom project and Elementary bathrooms are priorities. 
iv. Dr. Powell will bring back these projects at the May regular meeting for approval. 

1. Original Bond Fund Resolution (p. 28) 
2. Proposed Bond Funded Projects (p. 39) 

Page 220 of 247



d. COVID-19 Funding and Projected Expenditures 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed the below and answered questions. 

ii. Will present ESSR spending plan at May regular board meeting. 
1. 2021-2024 COVID Funding (p. 40) 
2. Proposed COVID Expenditure Recommendation (p. 41) 

 
12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. Mr. Oseguera requested direction from the board regarding Prom 
b. Mr. Lower and Mr. Boone are in favor of prom 
c. Dr. Powell commented that we will move forward planning while following CDPH guidelines 
d. Mr. Odom supported prom under health guidelines 
e. Mr. Odom asked about the status of Sober Grad 
f. Mr. Oseguera commented that Calskate is reserved the night of 6/4/2021 throu the morning of 6/5/2021 for 

Sober Grad. 
 

13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Glenn County Educators Hall of Fame 2020-21, nominees and selection (p. 42) 

i. The board discussed potential candidates 
ii. Mr. Odom indicated that their used to be a committee that make make recommendations to the 

board for this event. 
Motion to nominate Wendy Robinson and Muriel Pope by Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Approve HUSD/CJUESD Developer Fee Agreement effective July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022 (p. 46) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed 
ii. Mr. Oseguera, Mr. Odom and Ms. Hamman commented 

Motion to approve by  Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
c. Approve Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement (p. 48) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed with a note that on p. 48, 1% retroactive this year adds to the 2.5% for next year 
ii. Ms. Hamman clarified that 1% is for this year and 2.5% is for next year means a total fiscal impact of 

3.5% 
iii. Mr. Leal asked for clarification that the total increase is 3.5% combined 
iv. Ms. Hamman clarified that the 3.5% increase is salary only 

Motion to approve by  Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
d. Approval of Tentative Agreement to negotiated terms in collective bargaining agreement between the District 

and HTA for the 2020-21 school year. (p. 52) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed 

Motion to approve by  Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
e. Approval of memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) between the District and CSEA concerning the impacts 

and effects of resumed District operations under post-COVID-19 conditions developed as a result of CSEA’s 
June 18, 2020 Demand to Bargain and the negotiations that have since transpired between Parties. (p. 55) 

Page 221 of 247



i. Dr. Powell reviewed 
Motion to approve by  Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
f. District and CSEA present Articles they intend to negotiate for the 2021-22 school year consistent with 

Government Code section 3547 “sunshining” requirements. (p. 64) 
i. Dr. Powell noted that there is a document missing to review the 2019-20 sunshine agreement and that 

it will be brought to the board for the May meeting. 
ii. Dr. Powell reviewed  

Motion to approve by  Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
g. Approve purchase of 2021 Ford Expedition XLT 4x4, 8 passenger vehicle with 19-20 Career Technical Incentive 

Grant (CTEIG) funds. (p. 67) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed and answered questions 

Motion to approve by  Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
h. Approve HUSD Certificated Intervention Specialist Job Description (p. 70) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed and asked for approval 
Motion to approve by  Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
i. 2021 High School Graduation and 8th Grade Promotion (p. 73) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed and requested approval of moving toward traditional graduation and promotion 
at stadium following all Glenn County and CDPH guidelines 

Motion to approve by  Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
j. CSBA March 2021 Policies for 2nd Reading and Approve (p. 74) 

i. Board Policy 0420.42 – Charter School Renewal 
ii. Board Policy 3110 – Transfer of Funds 

iii. Board Policy 3230 – Federal Grant Funds 
iv. Administrative Regulation 3230 – Federal Grant Funds 
v. Administrative Regulation 3311.2 – Lease-Leaseback Contracts 

vi. Administrative Regulation 3311.3 – Design Build Contracts 
vii. Administrative Regulation 3320 – Claims and Actions Against the District 

viii. Board Policy 3452 – Student Activity Funds 
ix. Board Policy 3515.3 – District Police/Security Department 
x. Administrative Regulation 3515.3 – District Policy/Security Department 

xi. Board Policy 3600 – Consultants 
xii. Exhibit 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 – Employee Notifications 

xiii. Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 – Personal Leaves 
xiv. Administrative Regulation 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 – Family Care and Medical Leave 

1. Recommend Option 1 and Option 1 
xv. Board Policy 6142.8 – Comprehensive Health Education 

Page 222 of 247



xvi. Administrative Regulation 6142.8 – Comprehensive Health Education 
1. Dr. Powell reviewed and requested accepting policies as listed striking items ix and x 

Motion to accept and approve as written by  Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

Motion to accept consent agenda by  Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on March 24, 2021 (p. 80) 
b. California Department of Education Consolidated Application for 2020-21 (CARS) (p. 84) 
c. Gear Up Field Trip for two 8th Grade cohorts to Chico State for a grounds tour, picnic lunch to think about 

college on Friday, May 14th and Friday May 21st. 
d. Approve Hamilton Elementary School Single Plana for Student Achievement (SPSA) 2020-21 (p. 101) 
e. HHS School Site Council Meeting on March 23, 2021 Agenda (p. 161) 
f. HHS School Site Council Meeting on March 23, 2021 Minutes (p. 162) 
g. HES School Site Council Meeting on February 9, 2021 Minutes (p. 164) 
h. HES School Site Council Meeting on March 23, 2021 Agenda (p. 166) 
i. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 176) 
j. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. K x 1 (2021-22) 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. 9th x 1 (2021-22) 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. None 

2. Hamilton High School 
a. 9th x 2 (2021-22) 

 
k. Personnel Actions as Presented: 

i. New hires: 
Rina Gonzales Local Support Teacher (LST) for Temp. Intern 

Teacher at HES for 20-21 school year, 
beginning 1/11/2021 – ending 6/4/2021 
 

HUSD 

Timothy DeVries Short-Term District Custodian 
 

HUSD 

Sophie Montgomery Short-Term District Custodian HUSD 
 

 
ii. Resignations/Retirement: 

Asha Mundo Child Nutrition Assistant, Effective 
6/30/2021 
 

HES 

Derek Nall Temporary Physical Education Teacher, 
Effective 6/30/2021 

HES 

Page 223 of 247



 
Aaron Johnson Temporary Science Teacher, Effective 

6/30/2021 
 

HES 

Susan Song Temporary Science Teacher, Effective 
6/30/2021 
 

HHS 

Trevor Heyl Temporary Multiple Subject Teacher, 
Effective 6/30/2021 
 

HES 

Luis Perez Vargas Temporary English Teacher (Intern), 
Effective 6/30/2021 
 

HES 

Sheila Skemp Long-Term Substitute Teacher, Effective 
6/30/2021 
 

HUSD 

Luke Widener Long-Term Substitute Teacher, Effective 
6/30/2021 
 

HUSD 

Chloe Patton Long-Term Substitute Teacher, Effective 
6/30/2021 

HUSD 

 

 
 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 8:00 p.m. 
“A generation which ignores history has no past and no future.” – Robert Heinlein 
 
 
 
 

X
Rod Boone

HUSD Board Clerk

 
 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D.

Superintendent

 

Page 224 of 247



 

 

Hamilton Elementary School 

277 Capay Avenue   •   P.O. Box 277 

Hamilton City, CA  95951-0277 

School Office (530) 826-3474   •   Fax (530) 826-0419          

District Office (530) 826-3261 

Hamilton Elementary School  

School Site Council Meeting  

5/11/2021 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/91058674531?pwd=V2VvVktieXNGS2Z6R1RBVzU0UFk2QT09  

 

Meeting ID: 910 5867 4531 

Passcode: HES 

 

Norms:  

 

● Bring multiple perspectives 

● Share openly & honestly 
● Stay on agenda 
● Assume positive intent 
● Respect commitment of role: Attend all meetings, arrive on time, come prepared 

 

Agenda 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

Item 1  Call to Order 

● Welcome 

● Introductions 

 

Item 2  Establish Quorum (3 HES Staff, 2 Parents/Community Members) 

 

Staff Present: 

 

Parents Present: 

 

Item 3  Verification of Posting of the Agenda—72 Hours in Advance 

 

Anticipated posting by 3/18/21 

 

Item 4  Public Comment 

This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the Agenda. 

Comments should be limited to a maximum of three minutes duration.  The SSC is 

prohibited by State Law from taking action on any item presented if it is not listed on the 

Agenda. 

 

Item 5  Approval of Minutes— (5 minutes.) 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

Item 6            End of Year Events 

Item 7            Presentation: CASEL room at Mill Street 

 

Item 8             Title I expenditures/presentations:  

❏ Lobo Zen Den  (Goal 1, Activity 2: SEL supports)  

Page 225 of 247

https://zoom.us/j/91058674531?pwd=V2VvVktieXNGS2Z6R1RBVzU0UFk2QT09


 

 

❏ Planners (Goal 2, Activity 7: Academic support) 

❏ Parent support/outreach (Goal 3): Training and resources 

❏ Tier 1 Professional development: UDL 

                         

 

         

 

Item 10                

 

                  

  

ACTION ITEMS 

Item 9   Approve Title I expenditures 

    

 

           

              

ADJOURMENT  By 7:00 pm 

 
 

Hamilton Elementary School Site Council By-laws  

Revised January 2015  

 

ARTICLE I – HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL  

The Hamilton Unified School District has established the Hamilton Elementary School Site 

Council. Hereinafter, the School Site Council may be referred to as the Council.  

ARTICLE II - ROLE OF THE COUNCIL  

The School Site Council is required, under state law, to serve as the school community 

representative body for determining the focus of the school’s academic instructional program 

and all related categorical resources. The School Site Council has responsibilities for these 

duties:  

• Analyzing and evaluating the academic achievement of all students in the school.  

• Obtaining recommendations from school site advisory, standing, and special 

committees regarding the focus of the School’s Single Plan for Student Achievement  

• Developing and approving the school plan and all related budget expenditures to the 

local governing board  

• Providing ongoing monitoring of the implementation of the plan and budget 

expenditures in accordance with all state and federal laws and regulations  

• Recommending the school plan including related budget expenditures to the local 

governing board  

Page 226 of 247



 

 

• Providing ongoing monitoring for the implementation of 

the plan and budgets/expenditures  

• Revising the school plan, including expenditures, timelines, and 

evaluation criteria, as needed  

• Participating in all local, state, and federal reviews of the school’s 

program for compliance and quality  

• Annually evaluating the effectiveness of the school’s progress toward meeting school 

goals to raise student achievement for all students  

• Encouraging broad representation of parents, community members, teachers, and 

students, if appropriate, including all socioeconomic, ethnic, and programmatic 

groups represented in the school in leadership roles and in the activities of the 

School Site Council  

• Carry out all other duties assigned to the council by the district governing board 

and by state or federal law.  

 

Every two years, an English Learner Advisory Committee may elect to have the School Site 

Council serve as the site leadership body for the EL program. If this occurs, the School Site 

Council, after training, will assist the principal and staff in:  

 

• Developing a detailed school plan for EL students as a part of the Single Plan for 

Student Achievement that is submitted to the local board of education  

• Developing the school’s needs assessment for EL students  

• Administering the school’s language census  

• Assuring that efforts have been made to notify EL parents of the importance of 

regular school attendance  

 

If funding for Economic Impact Aid becomes available, every two years a School Advisory 

Committee may elect to have the School Site Council serve as the site leadership body for 

the Economic Impact Aid Program will assist the principal and staff in:  

 

• Developing a detailed school plan for low income educationally disadvantaged and 

English learner students as a part of the Single Plan for Student Achievement that is 

submitted to the local board of education. 

  

The School Site Council will vote to determine whether the school will participate in the School 

based Coordination Program.  

 

ARTICLE III – Members  

 

Page 227 of 247



 

 

Section 1: Size and Compensation  

The School Site Council will be composed of (10) members. Half of the 

representation on the council shall be from the school staff. This council half 

will include:  

(1)-Principal  

(3)-Teachers, selected by teachers; (NOTE: Classroom teachers shall constitute the majority of 

those persons representing the school staff)  

(1)-Other School Personnel  

(5)-Parents or community members, selected by parents at the school  

 

Section 2: Term of Office  

All parents of the Council shall serve for a term of 2 years. All teachers or other school personnel 

shall serve for a term of one year. However, in order to achieve staggered membership, one half, 

or the nearest approximation, of each representative group shall be selected during the odd years 

and the remaining number of members selected during the even years.  At the end of each 

representative member’s term, membership terminates. In order to continue to serve as a council 

member, the member must be reselected by the appropriate representative group.  

 

(New Councils) With the exception of the principal a chance method or lottery will be used 

to determine the length of each member’s term at the first council meeting.  

 

Section 3: Selection/Election of Members  

Elections of council members shall be held each year, no later than September 30th.  

 

Annually, the SSC will establish an Election Committee composed of a teacher, other school 

personnel, a parent to oversee the election of council members.  

 

Election Committee: The duties of the committee shall be to supervise the election procedure, to 

identify nominees on the basis of the nominating procedure, to unseal and count the ballots, and 

to declare elected representatives on the basis of the election procedure.  

 

The following procedures shall be followed in nominating candidates and selecting/electing 

council members:  

• Teachers: Secret ballot of HES certificated staff that are HTA members; election by the 

end of September 30  

• Parents/Guardians: Secret ballot of parents/guardians election by September 30  

• Other School Personnel: Secret ballot of HES classified staff that are CSEA members 

election by September 30.  

 

Page 228 of 247



 

 

Election ballots shall be prepared by the Election Committee with the 

assistance of the principal and shall be distributed to each peer group.  

 

In all elections for council members, ties will be decided by lot.  

 

Section 4: Voting Rights  

Each member of the council shall be entitled to one vote and may cast that vote on each matter 

submitted to a vote of the Council. Absentee ballots shall not be permitted.  

 

An alternate representative may not cast a vote in the absence of the selected member. The role 

of an alternate is for information collection only.  

 

Section 5: Termination of Membership  

A member shall no longer hold membership should he or she cease to be a resident of the school 

or no longer meets the membership requirements under which he or she was selected (e.g., a 

parent becomes employed by the district). Membership shall automatically terminate for any 

member who is absent from all regular meetings for a period three consecutive meetings. The 

Council, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the members, can suspend or expel a 

member.  

 

Section 6: Transfer of Membership  

Membership on the Council may not be assigned or transferred.  

 

Section 7: Resignation  

Any selected council member may terminate his or her membership by submitting a written letter 

of resignation to the Council chairperson.  

 

Section 8: Vacancy  

Any vacancy on the Council that occurs during the term of a member shall be filled 

by:  

• An election of a new member by the appropriate representative group  

• Or an appointment of a new member through the remainder of the term (selected 

by the remaining peer group members, not the council as a whole).  

 

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS  

 

Section 1: Officers  

The officers of the Council shall include a chairperson, vice- chairperson, 

secretary, parliamentarian and any other officers the Council shall deem as 

desirable.  

Page 229 of 247



 

 

 

Section 2: Election of Officers and Terms of Office  

The officers of the Council shall be elected annually and shall serve a term for 

one year or until a successor has been elected. Any member of the Council, 

including the principal, may serve in any officer capacity.  

 

Section 3: Removal of Officers  

Any officer may be removed from their office by a two-thirds vote of all council 

members.  

 

Section 4: Vacancy in an Officer Position  

A vacancy in any office because of resignation, removal, disqualification, death. or otherwise 

shall be filled for the remainder of the officer‘s term. A vacancy in any office shall be filled by 

a special election of the Council. This special election will be included in the posted meeting 

agenda.  

 

Section 5: Officer duties  

The chairperson shall:  

• Preside at all meetings of the Council  

• Sign all letters, reports. and other communications of the Council  

• Perform all duties incident to the Office of the chairperson  

The vice-chairperson shall:  

• Represent the chairperson or council in assigned duties  

• Substitute for the chairperson in his or her absence  

The secretary shall:  

• Keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the Council  

• Promptly transmit to each of the council members and district representative true 

and correct copies of the minutes of such meetings  

• Provide all notices in accordance with the provisions of these by laws  

• Serve as custodian of the School Site Council records  

• Maintain a register of the address, phone number, and term of office of each council 

member  

• Maintain a register of the chairpersons of other school advisory and subcommittee 

members, including addresses and phone numbers  

• Perform all duties incident to the office of secretary  

• Perform such duties that are assigned by the chairperson or the council  

The Parliamentarian shall:  

• Be the time keeper for the meeting  

• Ensure the Bylaws are followed  

• Draft positions or plans for council review  

Page 230 of 247



 

 

• Perform the duties of 

Sargent at Arms  

 

Annually each School Site Council shall convene a professional development 

committee, composed of a majority of teachers, to determine the professional 

development activities included within the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  

 

ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES  

 

Section 1: Standing and Special Committees  

The School Site Council may, from time to time, establish standing or special committees to 

perform various functions as prescribed by the Council. All such committees will include 

representation from the various representative groups. All appointed individuals and committees 

serve at the pleasure of the Council and are advisory to it. No standing or special committee may 

exercise the authority of the Council. A standing or special committee may be abolished by a 

vote of the Council.  

 

The purpose of these committees is to:  

• Gather and analyze data  

• Examine materials staffing or fund possibilities  

• Propose to the Council strategies for improving the instructional practices  

 

Section 2: Standing and Special Committee Membership  

Unless otherwise determined by the Council, the Council chairperson shall appoint members of 

the standing or special committees. A vacancy on a standing or special committee shall be filled 

by appointment of the chairperson.  

 

 

Section 3: Standing and Special Committee Term of Office  

The Council shall determine the membership terms for all standing and special 

committees. This term should be communicated to the committee members at the 

beginning of their assignment.  

 

Section 4: Standing and Special Committee Rules  

Each standing and special committee will establish procedural rules that are consistent with 

the Council’s bylaws and the district governing board.  

 

ARTICLE VI - MEETINGS OF THE SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL  

 

Section 1: Meetings  

The council shall hold regular monthly meetings with the day and time as agreed upon by the 

Page 231 of 247



 

 

Council at the September meeting of that school year. Special meetings of 

the Council may be called by the chairperson or by a majority vote of the 

Council.  

 

Section 2: Place of Meetings  

The Council shall hold its regular meetings at a facility provided by the school, unless the school 

principal determines that such a facility accessible to the public, including 'handicapped persons, 

is unavailable or does not meet health and/or safety codes. Alternative meeting sites shall be 

determined jointly by the school principal and Council chairperson.  

 

Section 3: Notice of Meetings  

Written notice of the meeting shall be posted at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting at the 

school site, or any other appropriate place that is accessible to the public. This written notice 

shall specify the date, time, and location of the meeting, and contain an agenda describing each 

item of business to be discussed or acted upon. Any change in the established date, time, or 

location of the meeting needs to be especially noted in the agenda. The Council shall not take 

any action on any item of business unless that item appears on the posted agenda or unless the 

Council or committee members present by unanimous vote, find that there is a need to take 

immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the council or committee 

subsequent to the posting of the agenda.  

 

Questions or brief statements made at a meeting by members of the Council, committee, or 

public that do not have a significant effect on pupils or employees in the school or school 

district or that can be resolved solely by the provision of information need not be described on 

an agenda as items of business.  

 

All required notices shall be delivered to council and committee members to no less than 72 

hours, and no more than (5) days in advance of the meeting, personally, by mail, or by 

email.  

 

The Council will annually notify representative groups of the meetings through:  

• Inclusion in school communications (e.g.. bulletins, newsletters)  

• Posted (e.g., in the school office window and community services bulletin)  

 

Section 4: Quorum  

The presence of 5l% of the Council membership (51% school and 51% parent) in attendance at 

the meeting will constitute a quorum. No decisions of the Council shall be valid unless a quorum 

of the membership is present.  

 

Section 5: Conduct of Meetings  

Page 232 of 247



 

 

Meeting of the Council shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of 

order established by Education Code 35147 and the Robert’s Rules of Order 

or an adaptation thereof approved by the Council.  

 

If the Council violates any of the procedural meeting requirements found in 

Ed. Code Section 35147, and upon demand of any person, the Council shall reconsider the item 

at its next meeting, after allowing for public input.  

 

Section 6: Meetings Open to the Public  

All meetings of the Council and its appointed committees shall be open to the public. Any 

member of the public shall be able to address the Council during the meeting on any item within 

the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide 

an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the School Site Council on any 

item of interest to the public, before or during the Council’s consideration of that item.  

 

The Council may not take any action on any item of business unless that item appears on the 

posted agenda or unless council members present, by unanimous vote, find that there is a need 

to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the Council 

subsequent to the posting of the agenda.  

 

Each meeting agenda will include a time for public comment. The School Site Council will 

provide opportunities for the public to comment on matters that are not on the agenda, but 

no action may be taken by the Council.  

 

The minutes of the Council meeting are public records and are available to the public.  

Any materials provided to a School Site Council shall be made available to any member of 

the public who requests the materials pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Chapter 

3.5 (Commencing with Section 6250] of Division 7 of Title 1).  

 

Section 7: Communication with the Local Board of Education  

The School Site Council shall implement the rules and regulations as defined in local board 

policy. The Council may communicate with the board by submitting a letter to the Board of 

Education office. A School Site Council may request to speak at a local board of education 

meeting by following district procedures for communicating with the school board.  

 

A local board of education has the right to deny the content and related and related budget 

found in the school’s Singe Plan for Student Achievement. The Board of Education will provide 

written notification to the Council about their concerns.  

 

Section 8: Uniform Complaint Procedures  

Annually, the School Site Council shall participate in training about the district’s uniform 

Page 233 of 247



 

 

complaint procedures. This training will review procedures for filing a 

complaint. lf any School Site Council member or member of the public 

believes that the School Site Council has taken an action that is in violation of 

their legal authority, the individual or group may file a uniform compliant form 

with the district. 

  

ARTICLE VII – BYLAW AMENDMENTS 

  

An amendment of these bylaws maybe made at any regular meeting of the Council 'by a vote of 

two -thirds of the members present. Written notice of the proposed amendment must be posted 

as a part of the agenda and must be submitted to the Council members at least (5) days prior to 

the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered for adoption.  

Page 234 of 247



School Site Council Meeting
March 23rd, 2021

Item 1: Welcome and introductions 6:12 PM

Item 2:
Staff Present: Jenny Firth, Kathy Thomas, Maribel Hernandez, Dianna Camarena, Maggie Sawyer
Parents Present : Maria Guerra, Rocio Jauregui, Ana Lozano

Item 3: Verification of positing of the agenda, March 18th 2021

Item 4: Public Comment--no public comment

Item 5: Approval of Minutes--Jenny Firth made motion to approve minutes. Rocio Jauregui seconded.

Item 6: PBIS and expenditures update-- Expenditures were approved for incentives. This goes directly to
our mascot and brag tags. Mrs. Sawyer spoke about incentive prizes and our wolf bucks. Students'
names were drawn and students were chosen and shared on social media.

Item 7: FIA: Academic Support Plan--Mrs. Thoms discussed FIA. This will help with our school wide plan
as well as with our academic intervention approach.

Item 8: Chronic Absenteeism--Dianna Camarena
The state collects all absences and discussed the Hamilton Elementary performance under the
accountability system. There is a three tier of intervention approach to reduce chronic absenteeism.
Community member Vanessa Ortiz wanted to know if the data shared were 2019 or 2020. As of now, 10%
of HES students are chronically absent. Maggie Sawyer commented that if students are quarantined they
can make up absences by submitting their online work.

Item 9: SPSA presentation
Plan is required by all sites and districts. Kathy shared data from the current school year. Hamilton
Elementary is falling below and students are decreasing performance. Suspension rates have declined
but students are needing support in ELA. The goals were shared. Budget was shared and Mrs. THomas
recommended we use the extra funds for teacher training and support to help students. Question was
asked regarding where the funds were coming from, Cares Act and relief funds. Newsletters will continue
to be shared and zoom options will be provided for parents for the upcoming school year. Comments
made by Jenny discussing more programs targeting reading performance for students. Another comment
by Vanessa Ortiz regarding more discussion on social and emotional learning.

Item 10: Expanding staff training: Title I expenditure--expanding training with expenditures to support
classroom staff.

Item 11: SPSA approval--Maggie Sawyer made motion and Rocio Jauregui seconded.

Meeting adjourned 7:13 PM

Page 235 of 247



Page 236 of 247



P
age 237 of 247



P
age 238 of 247



P
age 239 of 247



P
age 240 of 247



P
age 241 of 247



P
age 242 of 247



P
age 243 of 247



P
age 244 of 247



P
age 245 of 247



P
age 246 of 247



P
age 247 of 247


	K3 RES 20-21-107 Fund 8 Fiscal-Alert-GASB-84-and-ASB-Accounts.pdf
	_Hlk39226008




